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CANDOVER INVESTMENTS plc

Report and Accounts
For the year ended 31st December, 1995

Candover organises and invests in large management
buy-outs and buy-ins, and provides development capital to unquoted
companies. Candover’s primary objective is to achieve above average

growth in its net assets through capital gains from its investments
and to earn a satisfactory income for its shareholders.
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TEN-YEAR RECORD

103,
Net assets record Profit after taxation
IN & THOUSANDS TN THOUSANDS

25443

1986 1987 16988 1989 1990 1991 1902 1993 [984 905 1985 1887 1983 I980 1890 (991 1992 1993 1994 1905

Where appropriate, figures have been adjusted for the 1989 capitalisation issue.

1986 1987 1938 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995

Total Net Assets
£000 18011 25443 34681 49686 48156 54456 59,795 69,380 84,347 103,798

Net Assets )
per share Up [17p 159p 224p 217p 244p 267p 310p 37p  464p

Profit on Ordinary
Activities before Taxation
£000 895 1,212 2,182 2,985 3,702 3,955 4,099 3,300 4855 5,222

Profit after Taxation
£000 590 772 1,500 2,001 2,267 2,837 3,152 2,381 3410 3,721
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TEN-YEAR RECORD - CONTENUED

Net Dividend per share Earnings per share

FULLY BILUTED

1985 1987 #0983 1989 190

1995 1986 1987 1688 1989 1850 180F  iDp2 1863 i6%4 i85S

1986 1987 1688 1689 1990 1991 1992 1893 1994 1995

Net Dividend

per share 2.30p 3.00p 4.50p 7.00p 8.50p 950p 1025p 11.00p 12.26p 13.26p
Earnings per share:

Basic 2.75p 3.58p 6.90p 9.03p 10.20p 1269p I409p 1064p 1524p 16.63p
Fully diluted 2.58p 3.38p 8.5Tp 8.75p 983p 1222p 1367Tp 1033p 1472p 16.06p
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

C.R.E. Brooke MA
CHAIRMAN

Mr Brooke was Chief Executive of
Candover from ils fermation in 1980 and
was appointed Chairman on sl Janvary,
1991. With effect from February 1956 ke
became non-executive Chairman,

I 1966 he was appointed Deputy
Managing Direclor of the Induslrial
Reorganisation Corporation and from
1969 to 1971 ke was Managing Director of
Seignta S4 which was involved in
investments in smatl and medium sized
advanced technology businesses in
Europe. He was a director of Pearson

Group for eight years and in June 1976

was appeinted Group Mi Director

of EMI, leaving the company in Febryary
1880 qﬂef its werger with Thorn, He is
also @ non-executive director of Slough
Estates ple, Lowndes Lamber! Group
Holdings ple, Tarmac ple, Wembley plc
and varipus unquoted companies
including Chairman of Innisfree
Management Lid. In December 1895 he
;:ms appointed Chatrmar of the Audit

Commission. Mr Brooke is 65.

S.W. Curran FCCA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr Curran was appointed Chief Executive
on lst January, 1951 having previously
been Deputy Chief Executive and a
direclor of Gandover since July 1982.
Prior to foining Candover in May 1981,
he was a managing consullant with
Coopers & Lybrand Associates and then
an Investment Manager with what is now
CINVen. He is a non-execulive director of
Greggs ple and a number of unguoted

companies. Mr Curran is 53.

G.D. Fairservice Bsc MBA
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr Fairservice joined Candover in March
1984, waes appointed to the board in July
1986 and was made Deputy Chicf
Executive on Ist January, 1931, Before
Joining Condever, Mr Fairservice was
eight years with ICFC (31} followed by two
years with the British Technology Group
{mow BTG ple). He is o non-executive
director of Kenwood Appliances ple,

BTG ple, Stoves ple, VERO Group ple

and several unguoted companies.

Mr Fairservice is 48.
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A.P. Hichens MBA *

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN, NOX-EXECUTIVE

Mr Hichens joined the Board of Candover
in December 1989 and was appointed
Deputy Chairman of the company with
effect from Ist January 1991. He is
Chatrman of Caradon plc, and Dfpt.:ty
Chairman of Courtaulds Textiles plc and
Lasmo ple, He is also a non-erecutive
director of Greenfriar mvestment
Company Ple, The British Coa!
Corporation, Global Stone Corporation,
London frsurance Marke! Investment
Trust Plc and The Fleming Income &
Capital Investment Trust Ple. He was
previously a maneging director and
chief financial officer of Consolidated
Gold Fields.

Mr Hichens is §9.

R.A.P. King *
NON-EXECUTIVE

Mr King was appointed to the Candover
Board tn July 1981 and is Chairman of
KBW Limiled, @ computer software
compuany which he founded in 1982, Prior
to that he was Chairman of Majestic Films
International, whick ke founded {n 1988.
Mr King és 61.

P.J. Scott Plammer FCA §
NON-BEXECUTIVE

Mr Scott Plummer was appointed lo the
Candover Board in December 1985,
With effect from Ist April, 1996 he was
appointed Chief Executive of Martin

Currie Lid having previously been

Managing Dirvector. He is also o director of

ils subsidiory, Martin Currie Investimen!
Management Lid, the managers of

The Scottish Eastern nvestment Trust Ple,
on whick Board he also serves. fHe was
previously a pariner of Cazenove & Co
from 1974 to 1980 and has had many
yaars experience in the investmen! field.

Mr Scott Plummer is 52.
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J.G. West FCA *§
NOX-EXECUTIVE

Mr'West, who was appoinied to the
Candover Board in December 1985, isa
Sormer Managing Director of Lazard
Brothers and Chief Executive of Lazard
Inuvestors. e was previously Managing
Dirvector of Globe Investnent Trust Ple.
He is Chairman of Garbmore Micro Mndex
Trust ple. and a non-execulive director of
Abtrust New Dawn Investment Trus! ple,
High Mecome Trust ple, British Assets
Trust ple, Bensons Crisps plc and various
unguoted companies including Chairman
of Principal Healtheare Finance Lid.

Mr West is 45,

J.M. Raisman CBE *
NON-EXECUTIVE

Mr Raisman was appeinted lo the Board
of Candover in July 1990. Unlil March -
1985 he was the Chairmon and Chief
Execulive of Sheill UK Limiled and retived
in October 1991 from the post of Deputy
Chairman of British Telecom ple. He was
non-cxecutive director of Glaxe Holdings
ple untit October 1990 and non-executive
director of Vickers plc until Pecember
1990. He is Chairmean of British Biotech
plc and a non-executive divector of Lioyds
TSB plc and Tandem Compuliers Ltd. He is
also Chairman of the Council for Industry
and Higher Education and Depuly
Chairman of the National Commission

on Education..

Mr Raisman is 67.

CONTINUED

D.R. Wilson FCA §
NON-EXECUTIVE

* Moraber of the

Remuneration Committec

& Member of the
Audit Committee

Mr Wilson joined the Board of Candover
in May 1984, With effect from Ist April,
1996 he was appeinted Chief Exerutive of
Slough Estates plc one of the UK’s largest
investmen! property compenies where he
is responsible for finance. He had
previousty been Group Managing Director
and prior to joining Stough in 1986 he
held senior appointments al Cudbury
Schaweppes PLC and Witkinson Mateh
Limited. He quelified as a chartered
accountant with Deloitle Haskins & Sells
in London and Geneve.

Mr Witson 4s 51.
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P.G. Symonds FCA
INVESTMENT EXECUTIVE

Mr Symotds joined Candover in
Jenuary 1983 and was appointed a
director of Candover Partners Limited on
7 February 1995 After qualifying as a
Chartered Accountant in 1876 with Peal,
Marwick, Mitchell & Co he spent seven
years in various aspects of professional
practice. In addition lo his dulies as an

investment executive with responsibilily

C.J. Buffin ACA

INVESTMENT EXECUTIVE

Mr Buffin joined Candover in

September 1985 and was appoinled o
director of Candover Poriners Limited on
7 February 1995, After qualifying as a
Chartered Accountant in 1984 with
Deloitte Haskins & Sells ke spent two
years in the Investigations and Corporate
Finance Departmenis. Mr Buffin has been
responsible for o number of transactions

M.S. Gumienny ACA

ENVESTMENT EXECUTIVE

Mr Gumienny joined Candover in January
1987 end was appointed @ director of
Candover Portners Limited on 7 February
1995, After qualifiring as ¢ Chartered
Accountant with Price Waterhouse he spent
15 months on secondment i the Price
Raterhouse Training Department before
trangferring lo Price Waterhouse Bahrain for
12 ths. Mr Gumienny has been involved

S.N.A. Leefe ACA

INVESTMENT EXECUTIVE

Mr Leafe joined Candover in January 1952
after qualifiing with Arthur Andersen & Co
in 1990 where he gained experience in @
number of areas including Corporale
Recovery. Mr Leefe has been: involved in a
nuntber of deals including the buy-cuts of
Druid Systems Limiled, Bibby & Baron
Group Limtled, Marlyn Holdings Limiled
and Verc Group plc whick oblpined a

THE EXECUTIVE TEAM

for a number of Gandover’s investee
comparies, Mr Symonrds aiso has
responsthitity for various accounting and
administraiive functions in Candover.
Mr Symonds is 44.

some of whick have led lo Stock Exchange
tistings, including the buy-outs of Motor
World Group PLC and Midland
Independent Newspapers plc (of which
ke is @ non-execulive director} and other
more recent deals tncluding the £626m
buy-out of Eversholf Leasing Limited
completed in February 1996.

Mr Buffin s 38.

in @ number of deals including Lowndes
Lambert Group Holdings Limited, Gaymer
Group Europe Limiled, Fishers international
ple, Economic Insurance Company Lid and
Shepperton Studios Limited, the bugy-outs of
which he led. Mr Gumienny 15 a non-
execulive director of Fishers International
plc, Economic Insurance Company Limited,
European Roil Calering Company Limiled, -
Provend Services Limiled and Shepperton
Studios Limiled. Mr Gumienny is 87.

Stock Exchange listing in November 1995,
Mr Leefe s a divector of Druid Systems
Limited and Marlyn Holdings Limited.
Mr Legfe is 30.
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THE EXECUTIVE TEAM - CONTINUED

M.N. Calderbank MBA
INVESTMENT EXECUTIVE

"M¥ Caldgrbank joined Candover in Cclober
1995 from the management consultancy
Jirme of Mcitinsey & Co., where he had been
working as ¢ consultant on a number of
corporaie projects. Prior to that he had
achicved an MBA from the Harvard
Business School in 1993,

Mr Calderbank & 29.

P.R. Neal ACIS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Nea! joined Candover in October 1990 as
Jompany Secretary. He has been Company
Secrelary or Assistant Company Secrelory
fo o number of companies in Shipping,
insurance and stockbroking and prior o
joining Candover was Assistant Company
Secretary of the The Great Universal Stoves
ple. Mr Neal qualified as a Chartered
Secrelary tn 1981, In addition (o his duties

T. Tan ACA CPA
FINANGIAL GONTROLLER

Ms Tan joined Candover in September 1990
afler qualifying as o Chartered Accounlani
in 1979 with Grar! Thornion. She spent
three years in the Uniled Stales where she
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
before returning lo the Audit Department in
London. Ms Tan tanages the acoounls of
Candover and the various Candover funds.
Ms Tan is 42.

as Company Secretary Mr Neal manages
many of the administrative functions of the
company as well as being the company’s
complionce officer

Mr Neal és 47.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Once again [ am able to report a strong increase in both net asset
value and profits for Candover for 1995.

The principal reason for this was the large programme of
successful realisations which took place during the year - ten in
total, including six stock market flotations. As a result, of the
fourteen investments made in the Candover 1989 Fund only four
refnain in the portfolic and all are considering realisations during
1996. Assuining that these proceed as planned, it now seems likely
that the institutions which participated in the Fund will make a
substantial profit on their investment with us. When it is remerbered that the early years
of the 1989 Fund were severely affected by the recession, which proved much deeper and
longer lasting than had been generally expected, this is a strong performance which does
great credit to the managers we decided to back.

We made a steady start during the year in investing the £307.5 million successor
fund, the Candover 1994 Fund, and we continued to draw down the Candover 1891 Fund
for investment in smaller transactions. In total during the year Candover and these Funds
invested §36 million in seven buy-outs and buy-ins, together with a number of small follow-
on investments in existing portfolio companies. Since the year end Candover and the
Candover 1994 Fund have invested £22.7 million (Candover’s share of which was §5.1m)
in the £626 million buy-out of Eversholt, a railway rolling stock leasing company. This was
the largest transaction ever undertaken by Candover.

Roger Brooke

The total net assets attributable to the ordinary shares at 31st December, 1995, after
including current asset investments at market or directors’ valuations, less attributable
taxation, were £103,798,000 as against £84,347,000 at 31st Degembér, 1994, an increase of
23 per cent. Net assets per share were 484p at 31st Decernber, 1995 compared with 377p
for the previous year. At 30th June, 1995 the net asset value per share was 419p.

The increase for the year of 23 per cent compared with a rise of 18.5 per cent in the
FT-All Share Index during the period.

Profits before tax rose 7.6 per cent to £5,222,000 as compared with £4,855,000 in
1994. After tax profits rose 9.1 per cent to £3,721,000 (1994 : §3,410,000). The main
reasons for this improvement were increased fee and dividend income.

The valuation of fixed asset investments was £54,170,000 (1994 : £§57,566,000) after
taking into account downward adjustments of £2,126,000 made to reflect the under
performance of some companies as well as an increase of £7,234,000 over the year in the
market value of the shares which we still hold in those of our investee companies which
have obtained stock exchange listings. At the year end our cash and realisable assets
totalled £51,549,000, a rise of £25,133,000 over the year. Additionally, listed shares at the
year end totalled £21,662,000, equivalent to 21 per cent of our net assets. Candover’s
undrawn commitment to funds managed by Candover Partners Ltd, its wholly owned
subsidiary, totalled £64.3 million.

It is perhaps worth recording that the authoritative independent research firm,
Micropal, reported that over the ten years from I January, 1986 to 1 January, 1996, and
assuming that all net income was reinvested, the value of an investrent in Candover
shares rose more than any other Investment Trust listed in the FT All-Share Index.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT - CONTINUED

Over the same ten years Candover’s compound net asset position rose by 21.5% per
annum compared with 10.2% for the FT All-Share Index.

v

At the half year your Board decided to increase the dividend from 4.15p per share to 4.5p
per share. In the Hght of the further profit improvement the Board has decided to
recommend an increase in the final dividend fromi 8.1p per share to 8.75p per share, giving
a total dividend for the year of 13.26p per share, as against 12.25p in 19984, This is an
overall increase of 8.2%. Payment of the dividend will be made on 16th May, 1996 to
holders on the Register at 23rd April, 1996.

During thei year we recruited one new member of the executive team, Martin Calderbank
whom we welcome. The year was extremely busy, particularly in view of the heavy
realisation programme and Wé are lucky indeed to have such a strong, experienced and
loyal staff.

I reported at the Annual General Meeting last year of my intention to take on a
greater number of outside activities. On 1st February, 1996 I became non-executive
Chairman of Candover, although as founder of the company I shall continue to aliot a
substantial part of my time to Candover's activities and remain of course fully cormitted
to the Company’s continued success.

Last year I expected that our rate of new investment would rise in 1995. Because
experience has taught us to maintain a highly selective approach to investment, and
because the outlock for short term economic growth both in the UK and in most major
European economies appeared unclear, the result was a lower volume of investment than
[ had anticipated. At present there is still a healthy flow of promising investment
opporiunities and although the market remains competitive I am confident that we shall
continue to find good quality investments both for ourselves and the funds we manage.
Despite the short term political uncertainties the outlook for enterprising companies and
managers, particularly in the UK, is generally good.

The last two years have also been especially good for Candover in terms of both asset
value and profit growth thanks in good measure to the remarkable number of our investee
companies achieving Stock Exchange listings or successful trade sales. This process
should continue in 1996, albeit at a more modest pace. I remain optimistic about the

( 7( [W Roger Brooke

Chairman

cornpany’s future.

9th April, 1996
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
ACTIVITIES IN 1995

During the year, four substantial investments were made by
Candover in conjunction with the 1994 Fund. The first was in
Shepperton Studios, one of Europe’s leading production centres
for feature and television films, as well as television commercials.
Shepperton, under the leadership of Ridley and Tony Scott and
Denis Carrigan, has made a good start and has already
sﬁbstantially upgraded the studio’s facilities. The second
investment was in Albion Automotive Limited, a company based in
Glasgow manufacturing components for commercial vehicles, This
company too has progressed well since “the investment was made in July. The third
investment was the management buy-out of European Rail Catering Cormpany Limited,
a company which provides specialist food and drink producis and services for the
passenger train operating companies in Britain, and the fourth was in BIP, a company

Steplien Curran

producing specialist plastic products.

The total invested in these four transactions by Candover and the 1994 Fund
together was £28 million.

In addition, we financed two smaller transactions, the buy-out of Bibby & Baron,
a company manufacturing hags principally for the retail industry, and the management
buy-in of Marlyn Holdings Limited, a company supplying high quality food products on a
door-to-door basis direct to the consumer. The total investment by Candover and the 1991
[Fund in each .of these transactions was £2.2 million. Candover also invested additional
small amounts in four of its existing portfolio companies.

Since the beginning of 1996, Candover and the 1994 Fund have together invested
£23 million in the largest transaction to date arranged by Candover in our fifteen year
history - the £626 million purchase of Eversholt Leasing, one of the three rolling stock
companies sold by the Government as part of the privatisation of British Rail. Candover
was joined in this by a strong group of European investors and banks in what we believe
will prove a stable and profitable business with good opportunities for further
development. "

As mentioned in the Chairman’s Report, we continued in 1995 the strong programme of
realisations which had begun in the previous year. Five companies obtained listings on the
London Stock Exchange - Expro, Stoves, BTG, McBride and Vero - and one on the Dublin
Stock Exchange - Fishers International. In addition, four companies were sold - Gardner
Merchant, Pavilion Services, Atco-Qualcast and Golden Key Homes. All the companies
floated realised substantial gains for Candover and our various funds and the companies sold
to trade buyers also achieved large capital gains both for Candover and the relevant funds.

The single largest gain was made by Vero Electronics, which had recorded a
remarkable increase in sales and profits since the buy-out in 1994. Both Stoves and Atco-
Qualcast were also highly successful investments, and as with Vero, this reflected the
outstanding performance of the management teams.

In total, at their respective listing prices, the companies floated in 1995 realised gains
of £9 million for Candover and £45 million for the various Funds involved. The companies
sold produced gains of £3 million for Candover and £38 million for the Funds involved.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT - CONTINUED

These increases in value were the principal reason why our net assets rose as strongly as
they did during the year.

In Germany we established an agreement with Legal & General Ventures to join us as a
partner in building up our German buy-out and buy-in business. One investrent was made in
February 1995, that of Wohlfarth, a specialist transport business. Candover’s investment in
Wohlfarth was §0.3 million with the 1991 Fund investing £1.8 million. In France the new fund
raised by Ciclad Investissements has stdrted operations with a comumitment from Candover of
FF 20 million. In Italy the Cambria Fund has made one new investment and two further
investments in companies already in its portfolio. No further investments were organised by
Lombard Investraents, Inc in the period. We remain optimistic that our investments in
companies identified by Lombard will produce further significant capital gains.

The Hoare Candover Exempt Fund
The Electra Candover Direct Investment Plan
................................................................ The Candover 1987 Fund ...

The process of realising the remaining investments in these Funds continues. The flotation
of Stoves and Fishers produced some welcorme gains for the 1987 Fund and we expect that
there will be further realisations in 1996 whether through flotation or sale.

At the year end only four investments rerain in the Fund and one, Blue Arrow Personnel
Services, has recently anmounced that it is being purchased by The Corporate Services

-Group ple. The other companies remaining in the Fund portfolio could well be realised
through sale or flotation in 1996, '

As a result of the investments made during 1995 and since the year end reported above,
£21 million has been invested out of a total comumitted amount of £32.5 million (excluding
the £5 million co-investient commitment by Candover). During the year the flotation and
sale of Expro, Pavilion and McBride produced total gains of £2 million for the Fund with
good prospects for further successful realisations in 1996.

.................................................... THE CANDOVER 1994 FUND i

I have described above the first investments by this Fund The total invested to date by the
Fund is £39 million and the early progress of the portfolio is satisfactory.

Stephen Curran
Chief Executive

9th April, 1996
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS

STOVES PLC '

Cam‘iweris__[nvestment as af Slsi December 1995 1994
MuuﬁwmmrGosm“nvestmem£35,0005485000
o o s
B
, % of Candover's Net Assets 6.3% 39%
EarnmgsperShare ................... .......... ...................... 142p ........................ “p

DhidondCowe L mat A

Basis of valuation : Quoted Market Price

* The caleulation of the dividend cover is net sppropriate as the dividend paid in 1995 included
acerued dividends paid to investors in the company prior to the listing. No dividends were paid in 1994,

Stoves ple, in which Candover and the 1987 Fund invested £1.3 million is an independent cooker
manufacturer based in Prescot, Merseyside.

On 21st June, 1995 Stoves listed on the London Stock Exchange at 163p per share valuing
Candover’s investment at £5 million. .

During the year Candover sold into and following the listing 704,000 shares producing a profit over
cost of £1,360,000.

In the financial year ended 31st May, 1995 prior to the listing, Stoves achieved profits before
interest and tax of £3.5 million on sales of £48.9 million, as compared with profits of £2.1 million on
sales of £41.8 million over the previous year.

Recently reported figures for the half year to 2nd December, 1995 showed profits before interest
and tax of £1.5 million on sales of £27.9 million compared with profits of £1.5 million on sales of
£22.5 million for the same period in the previous year. The static profits were a result of the hot
surnmer in the first quarter which was offset by a strong recovery in the second quarter.

Gross dividends received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1995 were
£132,543 (1994 Nib).

JARYVIS HOTELS LIMITED

Candover's Investment as ot 815t December 1995 1994

Hotel owners

and Directors' Valuation ,600,

managers Effective Equity Interest (fully diluted) 82% . 32%

% of Candover's Net Assets i AR AR

Basis of valuation : Multiple of earnings

Jarvis Hotels Limited owns and manages a nationwide portfolio of 61 hotels under the Jarvis name
offering conference training and leisure facilities. It also provides management services to one
other hotel on behalf of its owners.

In the year to 26th March, 1895, profits before interest and tax amounted to £18.7 million on
sales of £89.8 million (1994: §11.4 million on sales of £63.3 million). Profits to date in the current
financial year are ahead of the previous equivalent period on a like for like basis,

Gross dividends received by Candover in the year ended 31st December, 1995 totalled §43,631
(1994: 5Nil).
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

' VERO GROUP PLC o

Manyfacturer of specialist
racks, enclosures and related
products for the electronics and

telecommunications indt_zstries

* The figures for 1994 have been adjusted to include Candover's investment through the Candover
1988 YK Limited Partnership.

VERQ Group ple, which.manufactures a range of specialist racks, enclosures and related products
was a buy-out from BICC ple in April 1994, in which Candover and the Candover 1989 Fund
invested a total of £8.1 million. '

On 17th November, 1995 VERO listed on the London Stock Exchange at a price of 220p per share.
At the listing price Candover received cash and shares worth 53,334,000 (cost: £628,000) from its
direct investment. A further £348,000 (cost: £75,000) was received from its investment in the
Candover 1989‘ UK Limited Partnership and &3,142,000 from the Candover 1989 Fund carried

interest arrangements.
A total of 412,000 shares were sold in the listing producing a net profit over cost of $877,000.

The results for the year ended 31st December, 1995 showed profits before interest, tax and
exceptional items, of £12.9 million on turnover of £97.2 million as against proforma profits of

£8.3 million on turnover of $78.7 million for the previous year. Sales growth was achieved in all the
key markets and with firm control of overheads, operating profits before the exceptional item grew
by 55%. Major expansion of the Uxbridge plant has been implemented to cope with increased
demand.

No dividends were received by Candover in the year to 31st Decernber, 1995 (1994: §Nil).
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Candoter’s [nvestment as al 315t December 1995 1934
0 £243,000

Technolegy transfer Cost of Investment

Basis of valuaiién : Quoted Market Pric.e'”

BTG ple is one of the world’s leading specialist technology transfer companies. Candover invested
£250,000 in March 1992 in the buy-out of this company from the Government. BTG identifies
commercially promising technology from a broad range of academic and corporate sources which it
protects by applying for patents and then licenses these products throughout the world.

Included among the technologies presently in its portfolio is ‘Torotrak’, which is an infinitely
variable transmission system for motor vehicles; ‘Factor IX Protein” which can be used in the
treatment of Haemophiliacs and which is now in phase HI clinical trials; *Tormudex’ a drug for the
treatment of colorectal cancer which was recently launched in the UK market by Zeneca and
‘Supertag’ which is a low cost tagging system which could ultimately replace bar codes.

On 6th July, 1995 BTG listed on the London Stock Exchange at a price of 225p per share valuing
Candover's investment at $708,000. Since then the share price has grown substantially.

Iri the six Taonths to 30th September, 1995 BTG showed a loss before interest and tax of 2.0
million on turnover of §8.8 million as against a profit of §0.3 million on turnover of £11.8 million for
the same period in the previous year. This decline in revenues and profits, which was largely due to
the loss of revenues following the expiry of patents on ‘Pyrethrin’ a synthetic agricultural product,
had been anticipated at the time of the flotation and was described in the prospectus.

No dividends were received by Candover in the year ended 31st December, 1995 (1994: £21,419).

LOMBARD/NOGALES RADIO PARFTNERS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Candover's Investment as at 31st December 1995 1994
k&é&;}aﬁé"""""w"""""'“'"""""'"'Eag{a'f"[ﬁk}éééﬁiéﬁim"'"""""'""'"""“"”'"'""iiés'é',éé%,'ddbw""'ijé'sfs',ééd',ﬁbd
' (583,451,000) (53,452,000)
T L P

(53,431,000 (§3,407.000)

.éﬁé.(.:.t.i;é..é@i,t.};.l.ﬁi;;s.;...‘....._,_,.A....,....,.,._____..A.......___i_é;g%..A...A..........A.....l.’;,._é%
%ofcandoversmmssets33%40%

Basis of valuation : Cost

Lombard/Nogales Radio Partners Limited Partnership is a Fund established in July 1994 which
closed with total coramitments of US$40.5 million, of which Candover’s total commitment was
US4$6.7 million. The Fund has invested US$29.2 million in 8 radic stations in four markets on the
West Coast of the United States of America, and is managed by Lombard Investments, Inc. of
California, USA.

No dividends were received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1995 (1994: §Nil).
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

DAKOTA, MINNESOTA & EASTERN RAILROAD CORPORATION

" Candguer’s Investment as at 81st December 1995 1994

lemad operatwns ............................ Costof[nvestme nt ............................................. U S$36 3 i US$36 3[}00
(£191,060) {£191,000)

Ditectors Valuation US$5,275,000  US$5,403,000
, (£3,398,000) (583,454,000)

Effective Equity Interest (fully diluted) 4% 136%

% of Gandover - Net Assets ............................................ 3 3% .................... 4]%

Basis of valuation : Multlple of Earmngs

DM&E Railroad operates a 915 mile railroad in the mid-Western States of America. Candover and
the Hoare Candover Exernpt Fund made an investment in this company in Septerber 1986 in a
transaction organised by Lombard Investments, Inc.

Profits befgre interest, tax and other incorme for the year ended 31st December, 1995 were
US$8.5 million on sales of US$45.7 million as against 1U5$8.2 million (excluding an extraordinary
gain of $4.7 million following early debt repayment) on sales of US$44 million for the previous year.

No dividends were received in the year ended 31st December, 1995 (1994: SNil).

KELLER GROUP PLC

Candovers Investment as a.t 31315 Decmber 1995 1994

Specialist contractors 0st 0 Investment &14,0

in building foundations Dlrectors Valuatmn o 52 793 000*

by e
o Car e
T T
ot S

Basis of valuation : Quoted Market Price )

* This figure reflects an increased shareholding fellowing the relezse in February 1985 of a further
1,370,000 shares in Keller arising from the Candover 1989 Fund carried interest arrangerents,
and is after share sales during the year.

Keller which listed in May 1994 is a leading international specialist contractor providing a range of
services in the area of building foundation support, speciality grouting, underpinning, ground
retention, groundwater control and seismic protection.

During the year Candover sold 600,000 shares in Keller which produced a profit over cost of
£743,000.

Profits before interest and tax as shown in Keller's audited accounts for the year ended
31st December, 1995 were £11.5 million on sales of §218.9 million, as against profits of §10.2 million
on sales of £195.6 million for 1994.

Keller's continued growth in profits arose almost entirely from organic development,. Its continuing
strength is based on serving a growing range of key national markets with its extensive range of
ground engineering services cornbined with its proven ability to operate on specific contracts
worldwide.

Candover received gross dividends of §156,600 in the year to 31st December, 1995 (1994: £7,405).
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REVEEW OF TWENTY LARGEST ENVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

BLUE ARROW PERSONNEL SERVICES LIMITED

Candover’s fnvestment as al 315t Decercher 1995 1994
e e
o S i

e

o e

Basis of valuation : Multiple of Earnings

Blue Arrow in which Candover and the 1989 Fund originally invested §22.1 million operates a
nationwide chain of 80 offices offering selection and recruitment services in the provision of

terporary and pemanenf staff.

On 15th March, 1996 it was announced that Blue Arrow is to be sold to The Corporate Services
Group Plc for a total consideration of $53 million including the payment of dividends. Completion
of the transaction is expected to occur in April at which time Candover will receive cash and shares
for its direct investment, its investment in thé Candover 1989 UK Limited Partnership and from the
Candover 1989 Fund carried interest arrangements, valuing its investment at a significant profit to
the 31st December, 1995 valuation.

Bhue Arrow’s profits before interest and tax for the year ended 31st December, 1995 were
£7.2 million on sales of £116.6 million as against £3.5 million on sales of £78.2 million for the

previous year.

No dividends were received by Candover in the year ended 31st Decernber, 1995 (1994: £154,856).

BIP GROUP LIMITED

) " Candover’s Investment as at 81st December 1995

e 511901’000
Dlrectors\v’aluat:on&1,901,000
T Eq o Interest(ful lydlluted} .......................... P
%ofCandoversNetAssetle%

Basis of veluation : Gost.

The Cormpary was 2 buy-out from T&N in which Candover and the Candover 1994 Fund invested
£8.5 miillion in October 1995,

BIP Group Limited produces a wide range of moulding materials and speciality resins which are
marketed to a wide range of customers with diverse end-user applications, including “metal paint”,

paper and textiles.
No audited figures are available for the period following completion of the transaction.

No dividends were received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1995.
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REVEEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

MIDLAND INDEPENDENT NEWSPAPERS PLC

' C‘andover’s Trvestment os at 31st Decernber 1995 1994

Regional daily and

weekly newspaper group

BaSIS of valuation : Quoted Market Price

* This figure reflects an increased shareholding following the release in February 1995 of a further
1,282,931 shares in Midland arising from the Candover 1989 Fund carried interest arrangements,
and is after share sales during the year.

Midland Independent Newspapers, which listed in March 1994, is one of the major regional
newspaper publishers in the UK, and the leading newspaper publisher in the Midlands. It publishes
a range of newspaper titles which includes, The Birmingham Post, The Birmingham Evening Mail,
The Sunday Mercury and The Coventry Evening Telegraph in a portfolio of 5 paid for and 40 free
titles. Further diversification was achieved with the purchase during the year of Inside
Communications Lirnited which is involved in specialist, controlled-distribution magazines and
related trade exhibitions.

During the year Candover sold 832,600 shares in Midland realising a. profit over cost of §915,000.

Midland’s results for the year ended 31st December, 1995 showed an operating profit before
interest, tax and other income of £19.1 million (including £1.3 million from acquisitions) on sales
of £98.3 compared with profits of £17.8 million on sales of £89.5 million for the previous year.
Whilst costs increased following the rapid rise of newsprint prices, recruitment advertising
revenues remained strong. Increased revenue was achieved from recent acquisitions but gearing
increased to 44% following these acquisitions. -

Gross dividends received in the year to 31st December, 1995 totalled £67,593 (1994: £35,179).

EUROPEAN RAIL CATERING COMPANY LIMITED

Ccmdovers Imvestment as at §1st December 1995

Railway catering services Cost of Investmen
Dlrecmrs valuanon 51 565 000
Effect]ve Eqmty lnterest (fu“y d[]uted) m e

% of Candovers Net. Assets 1 5%

Bas1s of valuat.ion Cost

The European Rail Catering Company was the subject of a buy-out of the on-board catering
services of British Rail in a deal led by Candover in Qctober 1995, in which Candover and the
Candover 1994 Fund invested &7 million.

No audited figures are available for the period following completion of the transaction .

No dividends were received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1995,
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

SHEPPERTON STUDIOS LIMITED

Candovers !nvestment as a.t 3Is£ Decembe'r 1995
Fumsmdmscosmf lnvestment &1 456 000
Dlre{:tors D &1456 000
EffectlveEqultylnterest(fullydl]uted)100% ..............................
%ofCandoversNet Assets ............................................ D R

Basm of valuatlon Cost

Shepperton Studios, in which Candover and the Candover 1994 Fund invested $6.4 million in
February 1995 is a major film and TV studio complex. Films currently in the course of production
include “101 Dalmatians”, "‘Ianmlet“ and “Evita” together with production work for a range of film
and TV advertisements.

No audited figures are available for the period following completion of the transaction .

Gross dividendsltotalling $44 802 were received by Candover during the year ended
31st December, 1995, )

ALBION AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Candover's Investment as al 815t Dacember

Automotive components

bir lu
Effectlve Equlty Interest (fully dlluted)
% of Candover 5 Net Assets .

Basm 01‘ valuatlon Cosr.

manyfacturer

Albion Auto Industries is a manufacturer of automotive components, specialising in axles and crank
shafts and was the subject of a buy-out from the creditor banks of Leyland DAF financed by
Candover in July 1995 in which Candover and the Candover 1994 Fund invested £6.5 million.

No audited figures are available for the period following completion of the transaction.

No dividends were received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 19985,
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

ECONOMIC INSURANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

: Candovers Investmt as a.c 315t December 1995 1994

Composwemsumme e [nvestment .. .‘2463 0005463000
compamy Dbt i e 000
.............. o

g Lo

Basis of valuation : Multiple of Earmngs

Economic Insurance is 2 composite insurer which was the subject of a buy-out from the Hafnia
Ingurance Group in Decernber 1993 in which Candover and the Candover 1989 Fund invested
£5.9 million.

In the year to 31st December, 1995 Econoruie Insurance Company Limited achieved a profit before
loan interest and tax of $2.8 million on net premivum written of £60.6 million compared with

£6.6 million on net premium written of £42.6 million for 1994, Net Assets at 31st December, 1995
were £24.4-million compared with £21.2 million for the previous year.

Gross dividends received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1995 totalled $28,971
(1994: ENiD).

MATTHEW CLARK PLC

Candover’s Investment as al 81st Becmber 1995 1994

Drinks production, Cosl; of Investment 5.606 000 &] 531 00[)
i tors Valuatlon &1 106,000* &1 638 000

distribution and

marketing Equl ¥ | Interest %
- ofcandovers Net;\ssem 11%
Earmngs per. Share (excluding exceptlonal ltems) 421)
ES Cover B TS

Basis of valuation : Quoted Market Prlce

* This figure reflects an increased shareholding following the release in February 1595 of a further
107,751 shares in Matthew Clark arising from the Candover 1989 Fund carried interest arrangements,
and is after share sales during the year.

Matthew Clark Plc, following the acquisition of Taunton Cider ple on 8th November, 1995, holds
approximately 44% of the UK Cider market and has a broad portfolio of other aleoholic drinks.
On 6th December, 1995 Matthew Clark also acquired Griersons, a wine and spirit whelesaler,
from Forte plc.

Candover's investrnent in Matthew Clark arose from the sale of Gaymer Group Europe Limited to
Matthew Clark in October 1994 in exchange for Matthew Clark shares. A total of 414,000 shares
were acquired from Candover’s direct investment in Gaymer, its investment in the Candover 1989
UK Limited Partnership and the Candover 1989 Fund carried interest arrangements.

During the year 260,000 shares were sold at a net profit over cost to Candover of £1,571,000.

In the six months to 31st October, 1995 Matthew Clark reported profits before interest and tax of
£16.0 million on turnover of £173.8 million as against £7.2 million on turnover of £125.4 million for
the same period in the previous year. These figures included the acquisition of Gaymer, but not the
acquisition of Taunton Gider or Griersons. The profif before interest, tax and exceptional items for
the full year to 30th April 1995 was £22.2 nillion on turnover of £299.3 million.

Gross dividends of §92,405 were received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1985
(51994: SNil).
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

THE CAMBRIA 1990 LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Candover’s Investment as at 31st DeMW 1995 1994
ItalmnbuyoutfundCostof[nvest.mentITL4,594mJ_I.hon[TL28[5mllhon
(£1,869,000) (£1,184,000)

DlrecborsValuatlonITLZ,'Tll)nnlhon ................... e

, (81,100,000) . SNl

Eifective Equity Interest (fully diluted) - a25% 425

e S

Basis of valuation : Cost less provision

The Cambria 1990 Limited Partnership is a UK limited partnership (“the Cambria Fund™)
established in January 1991 for the purposes of identifying and arranging management buy-outs
and buy-ins in Italy. Candover’s original comrmitment to this partnership, which presently has total
commitiments of ITL 10,850 million, was ITL 5,430 million (£2.2 million) invested both directly and
via a feeder fund, the Candover 1990 Exempt Trust. To date a total of ITL 4,534 million (£1.9 rnillion)

of Candover’s commitment has been invested.

The Cambria Fund to date has invested ITL 7,921 million in 5 companies, one of which has been
realised at an overall gain of ITL 322 million (£131,000}.

No dividends were received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1995 (1894: & Nil).

HEIDEMANN VERWALTUNGS GMBH

Candover's Investment as at 31st December 1995 1994
Auw”wtwe components(}ostof]nvestmentDMS,ZS],OO[}DMS|23L00{}
manufacturer . (£1,099,000)  _  (£1,099,000)

D;recmrs’valuat,lonDM2,346,000DM1,760|000

(£1,056,000) (£726,000)
Effectwegqmty]ntemst (fully d][uwd)95%95%
oo Ne;msemlo%og%
Ba,s;sofva,iuatlonMult[p]eofEarnmgs

Heidemanm, located in Einbeck, near Hanover, is engaged in the manufacture of special automotive

systems and components and electroplating.

Profits before interest and tax for the year ended 31 January, 1995 were DM 8.5 million on sales of
DM 137 million, compared with profits for the previous year of DM 8.4 million on sales of DM 134
mitlion and after including extraordinary profits of DM (.5 miliion.

No dividends were received by Candover in the year ended 31st December, 1995 (1994: ENil).




CANDOYEER INVESTYWENTS ¢

REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

: EXPRO INTERNATIONAL GROUP PLC

. Candovers mvesmwnt as at Sist December 1995 * 1994
Investment 526000 5654000
.“cl 018 (}00 &988 000

Oil and gas

Sield services ors Va!uatlon

E:qulty [nterest

% of Candovers Net Assets

Basxsofvaluatmn Quoted Market Pr:ce T

* The figures for 1994 have been adjusted 10 include Candover's investment through the Cardover
1989 UK Limited Partnership.

Expro was the subject of 2 management buy-out from Fiextech ple in July 1992 in which Candover,
the Candover 1989 Fund and the Candover 1991 Fund invested £7 million. Expro provides a wide
range of services to international oil and gas exploration and production companies in the Nerth
Sea, Africa, former Soviet Union, Asia Pacific and the Armericas,

On 28th March 1995 Expro listed on the London Stock Exchange at 175p per share. At the listing
price Candover received cash and shares worth £1,100,000 from its direct investment (cost:
£596,000), a further £112,000 (cost: §58,000) from its investment in the Candover 1989 UK Limited
Partnership and a further £606,000 from the Candover 1989 Fund carried interest arrangements.

During the year 100,000 shares were sold produc'mg‘a net profit on cost of £245,000,

In the financial year ended 31st March, 1995 Expro produced profits before interest and tax of
£12.2 million on turnover of $70.0 million as against £10.4 rdllion on turnover of $65.4 million
for 1994.

Profits before interest and tax for the six months to 30th September, 1995 were $6.2 million on
sales of £37.3 million (1994: £6.7 million on sales of $36.3 million). Although operating profits were
7% down on the previous year this was due mainly t¢ increased investment in new products and
markets.

Gross dividends of £10,785 were received by Candover in the year ended 31st Deceraber, 1995
(1994: $7,176).
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REVIEW OF TWENTY LARGEST INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

. ALUPAC HOLDING, INC.

Candovers lmestmmt as at 313! December 1995 1994

Packaging materials  Costof Investment T Uss204000 USS404000
(£121,000) (£240,000)

Directors Valuation US$1,189.000 US5973,000

’ (£766,000) (5622,000)

Basm of valuation : Multiple of £arnings

Alupac is a manufacturer of packaging materials based in Relpre and Caldwell, Chio, USA in which
Candover alone invested £240,000 in a transaction organised by Lombard Investments, Inc.

Profits before interest and tax for the year ended 31st December, 1994 were US$2.5 million on
sales of US$50.2 milkion compared with U$$2.4 million on sales of US$34.4 million for 1993.

No dividends were received by Cando';rer during the year ended 31st December, 1995 (1994: SNil).

: ‘ HERMES GROUP LIMITED

Candowrs Investment asal 3Is.t December 1995 1994
LeasmgcompanyGostofinvestment 5809000

D1 rectorsValuanon ................................................. A 523,000 ................

Effecnve Eqmmnwres e 9 3% ..............................

% 01’ Candover s Net. Assets 0.5% .

Basm of valuatmn Multlple of Earmngs

Hermes Group Limited which provides small ticket leasing facilities for motor vehicles and rnachine
tools was the subject of an original investment by Candover and the Candover 1987 Fund in May
1990.

Audited accounts to 31st March, 1995 showed profits after interest but before tax 0f-§407,000 on
turnover of $3,553,000 as against §442,000 on turnover of £3,724,000 for the previous year.

" Qross dividends of 15,829 were received by Candover during the year ended 31st December, 1995
(1994: £17,183).
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VALUATION POLICY

In valuing unlisted investments the directors follow a number of general principles which
are based upon the British Venture Capital Association guidelines for valuing unguoted
development stage investments and these general principles are set out below:

Investments are stated at amounts considered by the directors to be a fair
assessment of their value, subject to the overriding requirements of prudence.
All investrents are valued according to one of the following bases:

* cost (less any provision required);
¢ open market valuation;

* earnings multiple; or

* net assets.

Investments are normally valued at cost until the availability of the first set of
audited accounts post completion of the investment. Provisions against cost, however, will
be made as soon as appropriate in the light of adverse circurnstances - for exarple, where
an investment performs significantly below expectations. In exceptional circumstances
upward adjustments to cost may be made within one year. ‘

Investments held for raore than one year are valued on one of the bases described
above and generally the earnings multiple basis of valuation will be used unless this is
inappropriate as in the case of certain asset-based businesses. When valuing on an
earnings basis, the profit before interest and tax of the current year will normally be used,
depending on whether or not more than six months of the accounting period remains and
provided this can be predicted with reasonable certainty. Such earnings will be adjusted to
a maintainable basis, taxed at the full corporation tax rate, and multiplied by a discounted
price/earnings multiple, Price/earnings multiples utilised are related to comparable quoted
companies and normally discounted by 25%. The discount used ray be lower where a
realisation is planned within 12 months and higher if the timing of a realisation is long-term
or not currently being conternplated.

Where a company has incurred losses, or if comparable quoted companies are not,
primarily valued on an earnings basis, then the valuation may be calculated with regard to
the underlying net assets and any other relevant information, such as the pricing for
subsequent investroents by a third party in a new financing round which is deemed to be
at arm’s length. In cases where an exit is actively being sought then any offers from
potential purchasers would be relevant in assessing the valuation of an investment and are
a factor taken into account in arriving at the valuation.

When investments have obtained an exit (either by listing or trade sale) after the
valuation date but before finalisation of Candover's relevant accounts (interirn or final),
the valuation is based on the exit valuation subject to an appropriate discount to take
account of the time period between valuation and exit dates.

In arriving at the value of an investrment, the percentage ownership is calculated
after taking into account any dilution through outstanding warrants, options and
performance related mechanisms.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report together with the financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 1995.

Candover [nvestments plc is an investment corpany within the meaning of Part VIII of the
Companies Act 1985 as well as an Investment Trust under section 842 of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988, the tax status of which is shown on page 28.

Candover is engaged in the identification, implementation and monitoring of large
management buy-outs and buy-ins. Candover Investrents ple makes an investment either
under a co-investraent agreement with the third party managed Funds or on its own
account. The third party managed funds, established with con:unitxﬁents from a wide range
of international institutional investors, are managed by the Candover Group subsidiaries,
Candover Partners Limited and Candover Services Limited, both of which are regulated by
IMROQ. These Funds are as follows:

The Candover 1994 Fund - This Fund closed on 28th February, 1995 with total
commitments of §307.5 million including £70 miilion from Candover under a Co-
Investment Agreement. §39.2 million has been invested by the Fund to date.

The Candover 1991 Fund - Total commitments by institutional investors were £32.5
million, in addition to which Candover comitted §5 million under a co-investment
agreement. By 31st December, 1995, $21 million had been invested in 15 companies and a
total of §13.8 million has been realised.

The Candover 1989 Fund - Tota! commitments of £289 million were made by
institutional investors together with £20 million from Candover under a co-investrent
agreement, for investment in transactions requiring equity in excess of $5 million. By the
end of the investment period, which terminated on 11th May, 1994, §235 million had been
drawn down. At 31st December, 1995 §304 million had been returned to investors with

four investments remaining.

The Candover 1987 Fund - with £30 million available for investment in smaller
transactions, corarnitments have now been fully drawn down with only limited funds being

available for follow-on investments if required.

The Electra Candover Direct Investment Plan - established in November 1985 with
total commitments of §260 million to invest in transactions requiring equity in excess of
$10 million. Investors in the Plan were released from their commitments in February 1989
when §213 million had been invested. £319 million has been realised with one investment

remaining.
The Hoare Candover Exempt Fund - In March 1984 a total investment of £7.5 million
was raised with the assistance of Hoare Govett Limited. The Fund was fully invested by

1986 with a total of $8.2 million having been invested through the reinvestment of some
realised funds. By 31st December, 1995 a total of 314.4 nillion had been realised, with two
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investments remaining. In February 1993 the Fund was extended for two years and on 1st
March, 1995 at an Extraor@inary General Meeting of Unitholders it was resolved to
terminate the Fund on 30th Ju1:1e 995, and to transfer the management of the remaining
assets of the Fund to Candover Services Limited until a final distribution can be achieved.

The group profit for the financial year after taxation was £3,721,000 compared with
£3,410,000 for the year ended 31st December, 1994. Income increased from £10,711,000
to £11,386,000 Administrative expenses were $6,152,000 compared with $5,853,000 in
1994. There were rio_signiﬁcant changes in tangible fixed assels during the year and the
changes in its fixed asset investments are described together with a review of the group’s
activities in the Chairman’s Statement and Chief Executive’s Report on pages § to 11.

.............. DfVIDEND AND PROPOSED TRANSFER TO RESERVES .. .

The directors recommmend the payment of a final dividend of £1,958,000 equal to 8.75p per
ordinary share (1994: £1,813,000 equal to 8.1p} giving a total dividend for the year of
$2,965,000 equal to 13.25p (1994: §2,742,000 equal to 12.25p). Payment of the dividend
will be made on 16th May, 1996 to holders on the register at the close of business on 23rd
April, 1996. The dividend details are shown in Note 7 on page 48.

After payment of the dividend, there is a profit of £756,000 in respect of the year ended
31st December, 1995 which the directors propose to carry to reserves. (1994: profit of
£668,000 carried to reserves).

The directors listed below served on the Board throughout the year and were in office at
the end of the year.

C.R.E. Brocke A.P. Hichens* J.M. Raisman*
S.W. Curran D.R. Wilson* PJ. Scott Plummer*
G.D. Fairservice R.AP King* J.G. West*

*non-executive

In accordance with the Articles of Association Messrs C.R.E. Brooke, S.W. Curran and
R.AP. King will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Of those seeking re-election Mr Brooke and Mr Curran have service contracts and
reference is made to these in the Remuneration Corumittee Report on page 34.

The biographical details of the serving directors appear on pages 4 and 5.
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....................................................... DIRECTORS INTERESTS . e

The statements in respect of directors’ interests in the share capital, contracts or any other
matter requiring disclosure are now contained in the Remuneration Coramittee Report on
pages 31 to 34 and in Note 3 to of Financial Statements on pages 46 to 48.

During the year a contract of insurance existed as referred to in section 310(3)(a} of the
Cornpanies Act 1985 as amended for the purpose of indemnifying the directors and officers
against liabilities that niay arise in the performance of their duties. This contract is due to

be renewed in 1996.

NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY’'S SHARES ...

The company has been advised of.the following notifiable interests in excess of 3 per cent
of the issued share capital of the company at 9th April, 1996.

Number %

Electm Invest,ment Trust plc 2 000 00089
The scowsh Eastem Investme.nt Tmst plc 1 875 00084
The Prudentla] Assm-ance co Ltd 1 497 08667
Bp pensmn 'nustees nged 1 345 74361
Royal Llfe Insurance Lmuted 1 272 700.“.....‘.,. 56
MerCham Imestors AssuramEI 182 50053
London and Mamhester Group Of Compames 936 00044
Brmsh Alrways pensmn Fund 984’66644
11,143,695 40.8

During the year §21,938 (1994: §14,797) was given for charitable purposes. There were no
political donations made during the year (1994 : £5,000 to the Conservative Party).

Since the year end Bibby and Barron Group Limited has been soid and Blue Arrow
Personnel Services Group Limited has announced that it is to be sold to The Corporate
Services Group Ple. In addition an investment has been completed in Eversholt Leasing
Limited. Details are shown in note 27.
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The Annual General Meeting of the company will be held on 13th May, 1996 at 11.30am at
the Howard Hotel, Temple Place, London WC2; the Notice of Meeting appears on page 60,

In addition to the Ordinary business of the meeting, as usual, a Special Resolution will
be put to shareholders to permit the renewal of the authority of the Directors to issue new
shares for cash, without following the statutory pre-emptive procedures, so long as such
issue does not exceed $279,764 (being 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) or
as long as the issue is a rights issue or'pursuant to a scrip dividend offer or any pre-emptive
invitation.

The Company will have regard to the Investor Protection Cormittees’ (“IPC™)
guidelines in relation to any exercise of this authority. These guidelines require prior
consultation with the IPC before making any issue under the 5% element of the authority
which exceeds 7.5% in any rolling 3 year period. This authority will expire at the next
Annual General Meeting or on 13th August 1997, whichever is earlier.

Your Board have again considered the PEP Status of Candover's shares and for the time
being consider that a decision to ensure Candover remains eligible for inclusion in a PEP
will impose constraints on Candover’s investrnent criteria which will not be in the overall
interests of shareholders. This policy will continue to be reviewed from time to tire.

This is to give you notice, in accordance with the-Uncertificated Securities Regulations 1995
(‘the Regulations’), that on 1st March, 1996, the Company resolved by a resolution of its
directors that title to the ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company, in issue
or to be issued, may be transferred by means of a relevant system. The resolution of the
directors becare effective immediately.

The above notice is the notice that the Company is obliged to give to its members, under
the Regulations, of the passing of a ‘directors’ resolution (as defined in the Regulations) in
relation to its ordinary shares. The directors’ resolution will enable the Company’s ordinary
shares to be admitted to CREST in due course. The shares have not become transferable by
raeans of the CREST system merely by virtue of the passing of the directors’ resolution; the
permission of the Operator of the system, CRESTCo Limited, must also be given before the
shares can become so transferable, and this is anticipated to occur sometime in early 1997.

The effect of the directors’ resolution is to disapply, in relation to the ordinary shares,
those provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association that are inconsistent with the
holding and transfer of those shares in CREST and any provision of the Regulations, as and
when the shares concerned enter the CREST system.
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Shareholders should also note that, under the Regulations, they have the righi by

ordinary resolution:-

"

a)if the directors’ resolution referred to above is effective in accordance with its terms
but the permission of the Operator of the system, CRESTCo Limited, has not yet been
given to the shares concerned becomihg transferable by means of the CREST system, to
resolve that the director)s‘ resolution shall cease to have effect; and

b)once the directors’ resolution referred to above is effective in accordance with its
terms and permission of the Operator of the system, CRESTCo Limited, has been given to
the shares concerned becoming transferable by means of the CREST system, to resolve
that the directors of the Company shall take the necessary steps to ensure that title to the
shares concerned shall cease to be transferable by means of the CREST system and that
the directors’ resolution shall cease to have effect.

Grant Thornton offer themselves for reappointment as auditors in accordance with section
385 of the Companies Act 1985.

The Board of the Inland Revenue has approved the company as an investment trust,
under section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, for the year ended
31st December, 1994.

In the opinion of the directors, the company’s affairs since that date have been
conducted so as to enable it to continue to seek approval as an investment trust.

By Order of the Board
P.R. Neal
Secretary

/ 20 Old Bailey

London EC4M 7LN
Oth April, 1996
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 The Norination Cormittee chaired by Mr C.R.E. Brooke meets as and when necessary
for the purpose of selecting non-executive directors. All such appointments, together with
the appointment of any executive director are subject to the final approval of the full board
before ratification at a general meeting of shareholders. The Committee did not meet in
1995.

As required by the Cadbury Code Candover clearly separates the responsibilities of
the Chairman, Mr Roger Brooke from those of the Chief Executive Mr Stephen Curran and
the membership of the Audit and Rermuneration Conmitiees consists solely of non-
executive directors.

A list of members of the Board and the Committees is shown on pages 4 and 5.

........................................................................ GOINE COMEEXTL ooiroeercrrerersssrsisrnsessons s

Under the (}adbury Code the directors are required to satisfy themselves that it is
reasonable to presume that the Group is a going concern.

After making due enquires, and with the continued growth in Net Assets and profitability
of the Group, the directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Board are Eherefore of the opinion that the going concern basis should be continued
in the preparation of the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for the company’s system of internal financial control
Although no system of internal financial control can provide absolute assurance against
material mis-statement or loss;, the cornpany’s system is designed to provide the directors
with reasonable assurance that problems are identified on a timely basis and dealt with
appropriately. Key procedures that have been established and are designed to provide
effective internal financial control are described under the following headings:-

Control Environment As always this is dependent upon the quality and integrity of
the Corapany’s management and staff. At Candover highly qualified and able staff have
been selected at all levels and with the long service record of most executives there is a
continuity and enhancement of experience.

This is then supported by the Board with a majority of non-executive directors
together with external review by two sets of auditors reviewing both the company’s
financial controls and also those of the funds which the Candover group manages.

Identification and Evaluation of Business Risk The key business risk at
Candover remains the identification and evaluation of our investments and this is achieved
by a coraprehensive study of potential investments by executives in co-operation with
outside resources provided by market research specialists, lawyers and accountants. A
detailed investment report is then prepared and sent to the full board for their decision as
to whether or not to proceed. Further due diligence is then carried out before completion
of an investment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The requirerments placed upon the board of directors to review and report to shareholders
on the management and controls governing the operations of listed companies has grown
over the last few years. ‘

In December -1992 the Cadbury Committee produced a report on the “Financial
Aspects of Corporate Governance”, together with the Code of Best Practice (“The Cadbury
Code™), and followed this in November 1994 with guidance notes for directors of listed
companies on “Going Concern and Financial Reporting” and further guidance notes in
Decernber 1994 on “Internal Controf and Financial Reporting”.

Subsequently on 17 July, 1995 a study group chaired by Sir Richard Greenbury
produced a report E“The Greenbury Report”) which contained a number of suggested
improvements in the reporting by companies of the remuneration of Directors, some of
which have now been incorporated into the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.

In éonsidering all of these issues your board has reviewed all of the following aspects
of good corporate governancel and the review of these issues is covered below with suitable
cross referencing where appropriate.

The Company has corplied throughout the year with the Cadbury Code with the
exception of paragraph 4.3 of the Cadbury Code as there were only two non-executive
directors on the audit committee. This was considered appropriate for a company of
Candover’s size at the tirae and is in line with the recommendations of the City Groups for
Smaller Companies for corapanies of similar size. However, the Board has reviewed this
position, and with effect from 1st March, 1996 Mr J.G. West accepted an invitation to join
the Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors.. ... ...

Corporate Governance of Candover is achieved through the Board which consists of two
executive directors and seven non-executive directors. The Board meets monthly and
there is a formal schedule of matters reserved for decision by the Board which includes the
review of strategy, business planning, the level of commitment to the various Candover
Funds of which Candover Partners Limited acts as General Partner, and major acquisitions
and disposals which are not part of the investment process of the Candover Funds.

The work of the Board is supported by standing committees which include:

* The Audit Committee chaired by Mr D.R. Wilson, which seeks to ensure that appropriate
accounting and financial policies and procedures are implemented, that systems of internal
control and external audit are in place, and that the auditors recommendations are

considered and appropriate actions are taken,

* The Remuneration Committee chaired by Mr A.P. Hichens, which determines the level
of remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors and Senior Executives and advises
in respect of staff remuneration policy. The report of the Remuneration Committee is on
pages 31 to 34.
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The responsibility for identification of other business risks is delegated to the
Executive Directors who would always advise the Board of any material risks.

Control Procedures The main areas of control relate to the investments which
Candover makes and the financial controls which enable the Board to meet its
responsibilities for the integrity and accuracy of the Group’s accounting records.

The Board delegates responsibility for the effectiveness of such controls to the
Executive Directors who in turn ensure the completion of the required procedures. These
key procedures involve:-

. Analysis of potential investments leading to a full report to the Board.

¢ Regular monitoring of completed investments by executives who make regular
progress reports to the board.

¢ A comprghensive system for reporting financial results to the Board on a monthly
basis giving actual results compared against budget. Towards the end of each
financial year detailed budgets for the following year are prepared and are
reviewed by the Board.

* A review of these controls is subject to review by the Audit Committee and by
Candover’s external auditors to the extent necessary for expressing their audit

opinion.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control
for the financial year ended 31 December, 1995 and up until the date of signing these
accounts. This involved considering the present needs of the business and a report
prepared for the board by the external auditors setting out the main business risks and the
detailed controls. N

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1995

erreGommittee Membership...o

The members of the Committee are shown on page 5. None of the Committee has any
personal financial interest in the matters to be decided (other than as shareholders),
potential conflicts of interest arising from cross-directorships nor any day-to-day
involvement in running the business. The Committee consults the Chairman and Chief
Executive about the Comruittee’s proposals and has access to professional advice from
inside and cutside the company.
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The aim of the Comumittee is to ensure that the cornpany has competitive rermuneration
and incentive packages in place in order to recruit, retain and motivate top quality people
in the overall interest of shareholders.

The main elements of that package include the following:-

a) Basic Annual Salary.

b)  Annual performance related payments which include an annual bonus and
Prafit Related Pay.

¢)  Share Options incentives.

d) Pensions and other bengfits.

e}  Other incentive arrangements.

In considering the appropriateness of the above incentives Candover participates in an
annual survey of the Venture Capital Industry the results of which are reviewed by the
Committee in the light of Candover’s relative performance.

Salaries of the Executive Directors and other executives to be paid in 1995 were reviewed
in December 1994 for implementation on 1 January, 1995. Following such review and
being cognisant of the relative salary levels within the industry, the 22 percent increase of
Net Assets and 43 percent increase of after tax profits in the year ended 31 Decerber,
1994 the Comruittee approved an overall increase in salaries of 8.5 percent for 1995.
The salaries for the three executive directors increased by 6.9%.

With effect from 1 February, 1996 the Chairman’s salary was substantially reduced to
reflect the change of his role to non-executive Chairman.

The Annual Bonuses which are paid in two instalments, are determined by the Committee
after due consideration of the profit and net asset performance of the Company at each
half year stage, with adjustments as necessary for individual performance.

A Profit Related Pay (“PRP”) Scheme is also provided which receives 2.5% of the
Company's net proﬁt into the scheme for distribution to all employees. Based on an
adjusted profit in accordance with PRP rules of 5,204,450, a total of 5£130,111 has been
paid to staff for the year ended 31st December, 1995.

During the year ended 31st December, 1995 Messrs S.W. Curran and
G.D. Fairservice received annual bonuses and PRP together totalling 35% of basic salary.
Mr C.R.E. Brooke's PRP and bonus equalled approximately 16% of basic pay.
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On 3rd May, 1994 a new share.dption scheme was approved by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting in order to replace the old scheme expiring in July 1994, Under the terms
of the new Candover (1994) Executive Share Option Schere the exercise of options
issued under the scheme are subject to performance criteria which requires Candover’s
net asset growth ovér a three year period to exceed the growth of the FT-SE All Share
Index over the same three year period. This is reviewed on a rolling half yearly basis.
In the year ended 31st December, 1995 no options were granted or exercised.

»  The details of the share optioﬁs granted and remaining exercisable are shown in

Note 17 on page 55

Candover operates a non-contributory money purchase pension scheme and there were no
changes to this arrangement. Contributions in respect of individuals were however
adjusted following an actuarial review of the scheme and the actual amount of these
contributions is shown in the table of directors remuneration in note 3 on page 46.

As a part of the negotiation of Mr Brooke's revised terms of employment on becoming
non-executive Chairman it was agreed to pay a lump sum amount of $240,000 into Mr
Brooke’s pension scheme being an amount equal to three years of his revised level of
pension contributions at a discounted rate. This amount has been accrued in Candover’s
accounts for 1996, but not added to the table of emoluments for that year, being a benefit
in 1996. '

There have been no significant changes to company car or health insurance
arrangements other than to reflect increases in company car scale benefits as issued by the
Inland Revenue.

The Committee recognises that, in order to remain competitive in the venture capital
industry, various incentive arrangements which are customary in that industry rust be
made available to directors and executives. These arrangements are reviewed by the
Committee periodically but not on an annual basis. Although it is not clear at present
whether such arrangements constitute a “long term incentive scheme” requiring disclosure
in accordance with the Stock Exchange Listing Rules, the Remuneration Committee has
determined that it would be appropriate to refer to these arrangements as part of its report
to shareholders. )

Messrs C.R.E. Brooke, 5.W. Curran and G.D. Fairservice, together with certain other
executives of the company have a beneficial interest in the Limited Partnerships of the
Candover 1989 Fund, the Candover 1991 Fund and the Candover 18994 Fund. The
participation of these directors and executives in such arrangements was approved by
shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 4th May, 1989.
Any gains achieved through the incentive arrangements associated with these three Funds
are conditional upon a certain minimuin return being generated for investors in these Funds.
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It was announced on 7th February, 1995 that the Candover 1989 Fund had achieved
an internal rate of return for its investors in excess of the prescribed rate of 12 per cent.
Accordingly, during the year, £18.3 rm:llio"n in cash and shares in respect of the Candover
1989 Fund was transferred to the Candover Executive Trust, units in which were
subscribed for by certain discretionary and life interest trusts of which these directors, a
number of other executives and their respective families are the main beneficiaries.
Because of the nature of the trusts, it is not possible to allocate this to specific
beneficiaries.

Under a Co-investrnent scheme Messrs C.R.E. Brooke, SW. Curran and G.D.
Fairservice, together with certain other executives are permitted to make an investment
in the ordinary equity of coipanies in which Candover has also made an investment in all
the equity and loan capital. The amount of these investments are considered to be “de
minimis” and as in previous years the amounts invested by directors during the year are
shown under Note 3 on page 47.

During the year there were no changes to the above arrangements.

During the year Mr C.R.E. Brooke and Mr 8.W. Curran were on a two year rolling service
contract and Mr G.D. Fairservice was on a six month rolling service contract. Mr Brooke
and Mr Curran are seeking re-election on 13th May, 1996.

With effect from 1st February, 1996 Mr C.R.E. Brooke's contract was cancelled and
a new fixed term three year contract came into effect with a provision for either side to
cancel the contract at each annual review date. This new contract was agreed in order to
reflect Mr Brooke's change of role to non-executive director.

There is presently no intention to reduce Mr Curran's two year contract to an annual
confract but this will be kept under review.

The policy with regard to the level of fees to be paid to non-executive directors serving on
the board has in the past been formally recorded by the Remuneration Committee,
following a recommendation from the Chairman and Chief Executive as to the appropriate
level to be paid. In future a more formal process will be established to ensure that these
fees are put to a meeting of the full board for such approval.

The policy in regard to non-executive directors fees payable by investee companies
of Candover for the services of Candover directors and executives who sit on these boards
as official appointees of either Candover or of the funds managed by Candover is that these
fees are always paid either to Candover or to the Candover managed funds for the benefit

of the fund investors, whichever is appropriate.
Mr A.P. Hichens

4,7 bt
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DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
...................................................... FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..

The directors are required by UK Company Law to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

The directors are required to confirm that suitable accounting policies have been adopted
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been
made. Applicable accounting standards have been followed with the exception of the
departures which are disclosed and explained under the Accounting Policies.

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting records, for safeguarding

the assets of the Group and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

- By Order of the Board

P.R. Neal

Company Secretary

/// 9th April, 1996
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REPORT BY THE AUDITORS TO CANDOVER INVESTMENTS plec
................................. ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS. .. ...
In addition to our audit of the financial statements, we have reviewed the directors’
statement on page 29 on the Company’s compliance with paragraphs of the Code of Best
Practice specified for our review by the London Stock Exchange. The objective of our
review is to draw attentiofl to nen-compliance with those paragraphs of the Code which
are not disclosed.

We carried out our review in accordance with-bulletin 1995/1 ‘Disclosures relating to corporate
governance’ issued by the Auditing Practices Board. That Bulletin does not require us to
perform the additional work necessary to, and we do not, express any opinion on the
effectiveness of either the Group's system of internal financial control or its corporate
governance procedures nor on the ability of the Group to continue in operational existence.

With respect to the directors’ statement on internal control on pages 30 and 31, and going
concern on page 30, in our opinion the directors have provided the disclosures required by
paragraphs 4.5 and 4.6 of the Code (as supplemented by the related guidance for
directors) and the statement is riot inconsistent with the information of which we are
aware from our audit work on the financial staterents.

Based on enquiry of certain directors and officers of the Group, and examination of relevant
documents, in our opinion the directors’ staterment on page 29 appropriately reflects the

Corpany’s compliance with the ofh of the ¢ode specified for our review.
Grant Thornton l - London
Registered Auditors gth April, 1996
Chartered Accountants ‘LQ'\
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CANDOVER INVESTMENTS plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages 38 to 58, which have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out on pages 38 and 39.

As described on page 35 the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on
those statements and to report our opinion to you.

Baéis of Opinion ... R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance —that the financial staterents are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.

............................... e PRI Lo

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group at 31st December, 1995 and of the profit of the Group for the year

then ended and have been prope inac with the Corpanies Act 1985.

= \ 1sn, 9th April, 1996

Grant Thornton
Registered Auditors
. Chartered Accountants
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards except
for the policies relating to accounting for managed funds and certain associated undertakings as
described below. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except that
investments are stated at valuation. The princip\a.l accounting policies of the Group, which have rerained
unchanged from the previous year are set out below:

The Group financial staternents consolidate those of the Company and of its subsidiary undertakings (see note
11). The financial statements of each undertaking in the Group have been prepared to 31st December, 1995.
The results of subsidiary undertakings have been included from the date of acquisition.

ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS .

An associated undertaking is defined as an entity, not being a subsidiary undertaking, in which the Group
has a substantial and long-term interest and over whose financial and operating policy decisions the -
Group is in a position to exercise significant influence. Where such entities are an integral part of the
Group's investment management operations, the Group's share of profits is included in the Group profit
and loss account, and the investment is carried in the Group balance sheet at an amount equivalent to
the Group’s share of net assets. The company balance sheet shows the investment in such undertakings
at cost, and particulars of entities acecounted for as associated undertakings are set out in note 12.

The Group has certain other investments in companies which fall within the definition of associated
undertakings contained in the Companies Act 1985 (as amended) but which are not accounted for as
associated undertakings, and accordingly, the Group does not equity account its share of the net assets
and results of such investments. In the opinion of the directors it would not show a true and fair view for
such investments to be equity accounted while the remainder are held at valuation, since all such
investments are held for capital appreciation. Furthermore, the directors consider it is inappropriate to
include in the consolidated profit and loss account the Group's share of an investee companys
undistributed profits when those profits cannot be realised as income unless distributed, and if realised
by sale of the company will be taken to non-distributable capital reserves. The effect if such investments
were equity accounted is set out in note 10.

Where the constitution of a managed fund involves it being a subsidiary undertaking under the
Corapanies Act 1985 (as amended) but the Group has no substantial beneficial interest in the income,
assets or liabilities, the total net assets of the fund are consolidated within fixed asset investments and
the third party interests deducted immediately after. The incorne has now been consolidated gross in the
Group profit and loss account and the third party interests deducted irumediately after in accordance
with regulation 7 of the Partnership and Unlimited Companies (Accounts) Regulation 1993. In previous
years the incomne was not consolidated. Accordingly prior year figures have been restated. The third
party interests have not been presented separately from the assets and income of the Fund, since in the
opinion of the directors, it would be misleading to do so and the overriding duty to give to shareholders
a true and fair view of the income and state of affairs of the Group requires its exclusion. Details of these
managed funds are set out tn note 11,

Income arises from investment management and other financial services provided and investment
transactions undertaken during the year. It also includes income from investments and interest receivable.

Placement fees incurred in the establishreent of the Candover 1991 Fund and the Candover 1934 Fund
have been carried forward in current assets and are being written off over five years.
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Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost less residual value of all tangible fixed assets by equal
annual instalments over their expected useful lives. The periods generally applicable are:

Plant and equipment, 2-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-4 years _

Listed fixed asset investments are valued at middle market quotations derived from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List. Unquoted investments are included at directors' valuation, the prineiples of
which are set out on page 23.

Profits and losses on realisation of fixed asset investments are dealt with through the realised net
appreciation reserve. Fixed asset investments are not held for immediate resale and any profits on
realisation are not available for distribution. The excess of the market value of fixed asset investments
over cost to the Group is shown as an unrealised surplus.

Investments held as current assets are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value to the relevant
group undertaking. Profits and losées on realisations of current asset investments held by subsidiary
undertakings are dealt with through the profit and loss account. Profits and losses on realisations of current
asset investments held by the Company are dealt with through the realised net appreciation reserve.

Shares in subsidiary undertakings are held at cost less provisions.

Deferred taxation is the taxation attributable to timing differences between profits or losses computed
for taxation purposes and results as stated in the financial statements. Provision for deferred taxation is
made to the extent that it is probable that a liability will crystallise. Deferred tax is calculated at the rate
at which it is estimated that the tax will be paid when the timing differences reverse. Unprovided
deferred tax is disclosed as a contingent liability.

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Balance sheets and profit and loss accounts of overseas companies are also
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Where exchange differences result
from the translation into sterling of foreign currency resources to be used for further investment, they
are taken to the realised and unrealised net appreciation reserves as appropriate. All other exchange
differences are dealt with through the profit and loss account.

The Group contributes towards a number of funded defined contribution penston schemes designed to
provide retirement benefits for its directors and employees. The assets of the schermes are held
separately from the Group in independently administered funds. The pension cost charge represents
contributions by the Group to the schemes in respeet of the accounting period.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.
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GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Jor the year ended 31st December, 1995

as restated
+ Notes £000 £000 &‘000 £000

Managed Funds
Net income 11 11,979 10,340

Less: Third party interests in Managed Funds (7,340) (5,625)

Net income from Maraged Funds 1 4,639 4,715

I 11,386 10,711

Administrative expenses 2 (6,152} (5,853)

+

Operatmg income . 5,234 4,868

Share of proﬁts of assoelated undertakmgs 12 3 10

5 237 4 868

Interest payable and 31mllar charges 4 (15) (13)

Proﬂt on ordmary actmtles before taxatmn 5,222 4,355
Taxation on proﬁt on ordinary activities

Group b (1,500) (1,443)
. Assomated undertakmgs 12(1)(2)

(1,501) (1,445)

Proﬁt for the ﬁnanc;al year 6 3,721 3,410
D1v1dends ' 7 (2,965) (2,742)

Transfer to distributable reserves 18 756 668

Earnings per share . 8
Basic 16.63p 15.24p

Fully diluted 16.06p 14.72p

The accounting
policies on pages 38
1o 39 and noles on
pages 45 1o 58 form
part of these

financial statements.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED
GAINS AND LOSSES

JSor the year ended 31st December, 1995

Capital profit on investments .
Realised gains and losses 18 9,352 598

Unrealised gains and lossgs 18 4,541 13,661
Exchange differences 18 (80} 2

Capital surplus for the year ) ' 18,863 14,257

Revenue profit available for distribution 3,721 3410

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 22,584 17,667

Distributable profits
Revenue profit available for distribution 3,721 3410
Dividends 7 (2,965) (2,742)

Transfer to distributable reserves 18 756 668
Non-distributable profits
Transfer to non-distributable reserves 18 18,863 14,257

The accounting
policies on pages 38
to 39 znd notes on
pages 45 to 58 form
part of these

financial statements.




The accounting
policies on pages 38
to 39 and notes on
pages 45 to 58 form

part of these

financial statements.

The finanecial
statements were
appsoved by the
Directors on

9th April, 1996
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

at 81st December, 1995

leed assets
Tangible 9 136 179

Investments
Managed Funds 11 149,800 214,200

Current assets
Debtors ‘ 13 5,180 6,682
Investments 14 51 455 % 192

Credltors amounts fallmg due w1thm one year 16 (5,614) {5,893)
Net current assets 51,115 27,205
Tot;al assets less current hablimes 105,513 85,030

Provisions for labilities and charges 16 (1 980) (1,099
- 103 533 83,931

Caplta.landreserves
Called up share capltal 17 5,595 5,096
Share premmm account ) 18126126
Reahsed i appremamon e 187231550427
Unreahsed net apprematm msewé ]8 20 e 23 864
Proﬁt and loss account 18 4 658 3 o

Shareholders Funds 19 103,533 83,914

Mmonty mterests - 17

T ;{ﬁg

C.R.E. Brooke W. Curran
Chairman Chief Execulive
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BALANCE SHEET

at 81st December, 1995

The accounting

1595 1994 cies on pages 38
Notes £000 5000 £000 00 4 39 and notes on

Fixed Assets pazes 45 to 58 form
[nvestments 10 59,047 62,408 ::nj: sets:tcmen[s,
Assomatedundertakmgs ...................................................... 1 2 ......................................... 1 ......................................... 1
_55.;-:6;5 ........................... —
Curre nt ass ets ...............................................................................................................................................................
Debtors . 13 1,352 2,520
Imestmems ....................... 14 ........... 4 3,371 ................................ 19{)65 ......................
CaShatbank 2
Cremtorsamountsfanmgdue w“hmoneyear ................ 1 5 ___________ (3755)(3,255) ....................
Netcurrentassets ................................................................................... 41,453 ................. 1 3332
TOtalassemlesscurremhabﬂmesM .......................... "
meswnsforhab!htlesandcmmes ................................. 1 5 ..................................... (57) .................................... ( 59)
............................................................................................................................. e —
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 17 5,095 5,595
Sharepremlumaccountlg ..................................... 125 .................................... 1 25
ReahSEdnetappwmamnresewe ...................................... 1 3 ................................ 72,4045{)295 .
Unreahsed mt apprematlon o 1320,51723,612
pmm and 1053 e 131,7071043
.M ............................ -
............................................................................................................................... E— e E—

The linancial
- statements were
approved by the

C.R.E. Brooke S.W. Curran  Directors on
Chatrman Chief Executive  wmn april. (956




The accounting
policies on pages 38
to 39 and notes on
pages 45 to 58 form
part of these

financial statements.
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Jor the year ended 31st December, 1995

Operating activities

Cash received from investments

Cash received from investraent,
management and other financial services

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest paid 7

Dividends paid

Net cash outflow from refurns on

investments and servicing of finance

Taxation

UK corporation tax paid

Investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of investments

30,757

Sales of investments

Sale of tangible fixed assets
Net cash inflow from investing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 24

£000 £000

28%)

000 £000

S 18
2.507)

7&2,835) (2,520)

(8,197 (6,366)
9,728

7 14

22,520 3,273

95,133 3,798
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Jor the year ended 81st December, 1995

I T T |

1995 1994

£'000 £0600 £000 £000
Fmanma]semceselg532
]nvestmentdealmg ........................................................................................................... 414505
]nvestm entmanagemen L fee ......................................................................................... 5’224 ................................ 5,273
........................................... s e .._..........6’250 ppom

Investment income:

Income from fixed asset investments 2,354 2,774

~ Income from Treasury bills and other fixed

interest securities 2,231 1,116

Other income receivable, arising on

short-term deposits and loans 571 456
5,136 4,346
’ 11,386 10,711
g N pr————

Of the income from fixed asset investments of £2,334,000 {1994: £2,774,000), £104,000 (1994: £126,000)
arose from managed funds. Of the income from investment inanagement of £5,224,000 (1994 £5,278,000),
$4,536,000 (1954: $4,589,000) also arose from these funds.

Of the income from fixed asset investments 5368,000 arose from listed investments (1994: $111,000). Income from
financial services originating from outside the United Kingdore was £173,000 (1994: £29,000). All income arose from
the singie activity of originating and investing in management buy-outs and buy-ins and providing capital to unquoted

companies. All income is attributable to continuing activities.

: . . ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2

Administrative expenses include the following:

1995 1994
£000 £000
Staffcosr,sg,o]oz,szg
Deprec]atlonsz ....................................... 88
Aummrsremummm On ................................................................................................................................................. 40
... hon-audit work . M
Operating lease rentals - building B4 54
Other ......................................................................................... 13 _______________________________________ 25
Staff costs during the year were:

Salaries 2,126 2,084
.S. wa] sec unty c osts ......................................................................................................... 198 ...................................... 1 79
Pen Swn msura nce an d . Oth e 1- c osts ................................................................................... 686 ..................................... 366
................................................................................................................................ _3,010............. pyon

............................................................................................................................... L OO

The average number of employees of the group in the UK during the year was £8 (1994: 18). There were no employees
of overseas subsidiary undertakings in the group at the end of the year (1994: 3).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTENUED

3 : DIRECTORS REMUNERATION, EMOLUMENTS AND INTERESTS

The remuneration policy in respect of the Executive Directors is set out in the report of the Remuneration Committee

on pages 31 to 34.

Listed below is the detailed information required to be shown in respect of directors remuneration and benefits.

Directors Emoluments
Total Emoluments received by directors during the year ended 31st Becermber, 1995 were as follows:

Same Slries!  Pedtormznce Tacble -* lnsurance Tetal Pension Aegeare Tead  Peosion Mgregate
e Brectars Retated Pay Benefits Losls Emoluments Contnibwtion Emoluments Emoluments  Contributian Emaluments
Pees excluding 1995 1935 Excluding 1% 15

Pension Persion

Contributions Cantribations

1955 [

CREBrooke 20000 56,126 0185 15231 200545 88000 368545 | 328498 77000 40549
SW.Cuman 278 S6418 LSS 475 MR TA8B 421757 | B15659 52250 367,909
GD.Faimewice | 200000 0000 4351 564 280495 0000 30495 | 257312 3880 23,72
Management Remuneration 662,778 192,544. 25,802 28,750 909,964 210,833 1,120,797 901,467 165,110 1,066,577

AP, Hichens * 30,000 - - - 30,000 - 30,600 27,500 -

RAP King * 19,500 - - - 19,500 - 19,500 17,000 -

p‘]scmplummer*lgmg19500;9500 17‘000'
JMRalsma“GBE*lg,EUO!9500[9500 17000
JGWest*,gm !9'500195(}0 ”000
DRwﬂson*!gsuo!9’50019'500 13I;25

G.A. Elliott - - - - - - - 5,167

PG. Wreford - - - - - - - 5,167
Directors' Fees 127,500 - - - 127,500 - 127,500 118,959 - 118958

TOTALS 790,278 192,544 25,892 28,760 1,037,464 210,833 1,248,287 { 1,020,426 165,110 1,185,656

1994 COMPARATIVES 727,259 219,687 44449 29,032 1020427 165110 1,185536

The non-executive directors (*} only receive fees, which in some cases are paid directly to their primary employing
company, and do not receive any other remuneration. Messrs G.A. Elliott and P.G. Wreford retired from the board in

1994,

The performance related pay is comprised of pay arising from the profit related scheme and a

diseretionary bonus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Directors Interests in Shares
The interests of the directors in the ordirary shares of the company are detailed below.

Qrdinary shares of 25p each Share Qptions
31st December 15t January 31st December 1st January Exercise Date from Expiry
1995 1985 1995 1995 Price which Date
receivable
Beneficial
C.R.E. Brooke 501,552 501,552 12,795 12,795 113.89p 28/10/90 28/10/97

D.R. Wilson Nil Nit Nil Nil

There was no change to directors’ interests in shares during the year but between 81st December, 1995 and
$th April, 1996 £,260 shares were sold by a connected person of Mr S.W. Curran, in which he is also deemed to hold a
beneficial interest.

There were no options granted or exercised during the year or, since the balance sheet date.

Co-investment by Directors

During the year, Messrs C.R.E. Brooke, S.W. Curran and G.D. Fairservice, who are al! directors of the company have invested
in the ordinary equity of companies in which Candover has also rade an investment in all the equity and loan capital,
Under the Stock Exchange yellow book these interests are covered under the rules governing “Transactions with
Refated Parties” (“the rules™}. In view of the insignificant level of these transactions by the above named directors,
under the rules, the fair and reasonable opinion of the company's auditors is not required.

Details of these investments are as follows:

Equity investments in companies:

Class of Share Subscrived % (of class)

inyear feld by

the directors

3 %

Blbbyand Bamn Gmu p . L 1 m, ted ............... 0u m u1 at; vePam c 1pat|ngPreferred ...................................................................
Ordinary Shares of 10p each 595.0 0.15

é he ppemn Sm d ]0 Slemd ...................... A ordmawshares ofspeach ................................................. 21 ................ 0 61
Buropean Rail Catering Company Ltd ~ Cumulative Participating Preferred
Ordinary Shares of £1 each 1,020.0 0.51

Albm nAu to Indusmes lemd ................ Cu m u] acwe pam cmatmg Preferred ...................................................................
Ordmary shares of &1 each 1,495.0 052

B] P Gmup lelted .................................. A Ordmary Shams Of 10p eac h .......................................... 3 0 91 0 ................ 0 : 02
Marlm Fmds L1m1ted .............................. Cu s Ve Pamc 1pa.t,1ng Prefe”ed ..................................................................
Ordinary Shares of £1 each 460.0 0.15

leadlnvesnssmenns[]Fund ................ Bshares4632 .............. : 33

‘C’ Shares o T2.7 0.21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Note 2 continned i
During the year a subsidiary company advanced funds under the Candover staff co-investment scheme and season ticket

loan scheme to an officer of the company. The amount of £3,240 remained payable at 31st December, 1995 (1994: £3,180).

INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

1995 1994

On bank_loans, overdrafts and other loans

- repayable within 5 years otherwise than by instalments 16 13

) TAXATION ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES '

The tazation charge ts based on profit for the year and is made up as follows:
1945 1994
£000 £000
mgdom corporatlon tax at 3 } per | cent (1994 33 per cent) 302 7 947

Deferred tax (see note 16) . 7 881 - 117
Tax attnhutable to franked mvestment income 323 a7

Ad]ustment relatmg to prmr years:
United Kingdom corporation tax (6} 34

Deferred tax (see rote 16) e 6L
1,500 1,443

The Board of the Inland Revenue has approved the company as an investment trust, under section 842 of the Income -
and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, for the year ended 31st Decermber, 1994. In the opinion of the directors, the'Company’s

affairs since that date have been conducted $o as to enable it to continue to seek approval as an investment trust.

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not included its own profit and loss account
in these financial statements. The Group profit for the year includes £3,629,000 (1994: §3,452,000) which is dealt with

in the financial statements of the holding company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINGED

: EARNINGS PER SHARE i

The caleulation of basic earnings per erdinary share is based on profit for the financial year of §3,721,000

(19%4: 53,410,000 and a weighted average number of shares of 22,381,095 (1994 22,381.095). The calculation of fully
diluted earnings per silare takes account of thé share options and is based on profit for the financial year of £3,721,000
(1994: £3,410,000) ard a wéighted average number of shares of 23,172,255 (1994: 23,172,255,

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Plant and Motor

. equipment vehicles Total
&'090 £000 £000
Cost

At 1st January, 1995 462 247 709

Additions .
Disposals

At 31st December, 1995 412 234 846
Depreciation
At Ist January, 1995 32 158 530

329 131 510
83 53 136
90 89 179

Net book value at 31st December, 1934
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Investments

Managed Investee
Funds Companies Total

Group £000 £000 £000

Valuation at 1st January, 1995 16,576 40,990 57,566
Additions af cost o 127 8,303 8,430

b.i.s.'[;bsals

Valuation at 315t December, 1995 - ) - 2,195 52,045 54,170

Reconciliation )

Cost of mvestments 959 32 270 33,229

Nel: unreahsed appreélatlon of mvestments 1166 5 77520‘941
% 0% ST

Investments
Shmsm

subsidiary Managed Investee
Company undertakings Funds Companies Total
&’(}00 5000&000 &5000
Costorvaluatwnat lstJanuary, 1995 4842““”“" 062408
35 ’30.3. ......................
Dgsposals . (15439)(5672)(21111}
App]‘eClation 86184249285

Addltmns at cost

Cost or valuation at 31st December, 1995 4877 2,125 52,045 59,047

Cost ofmvestments 4,877 959 32 2.707“‘_”‘ 38 106
Net unreahsed apprecaatlon of mvestments _ - 1,166 19 775 20 941

4877 20% 53045 M7

At 31st December, 1995 ctumulative downward adjustments of £7,623,000 (1994: 59,024,000) had been made against
investments with original costs of $14,477,000 (1994: £11,455,000)

Investments at valuation include:

1995 1994
£'000 7 £000

Llsted ) 7 21,360 6282

Unquoted at dlrectors valuatlon \
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NOGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Note 10 continued

At 31st December, 1995 the Company held shares in excess of 10 per cent of & class of shares in a rurber of investee
undertakings but did not have more than 20 per cent of the total allotted share capital in any of these investes
undertakings. However in the opinion of the directors the listing of these undertakings would result in particulars of
excessive length and the financial results of such undertakings do not principally affect the figures shown in these
accounts. The list of these uﬁdertékings will therefore be enclosed with the Company’s next annuatl return as permitted
under section 231(5) Companies Act [985.

At 31st December, 1995, the Corapany had an interest of more than 20 per cent in the nominal value of the total allotted

share capital of the following companies:

Companies Class of shares held ’ Percentage of class held
Lombard [nvestments, Inc Preferred 100.00

(State of California)
VCI Candover Management BV Ordinary 30.00
(incorporated in the Netherlunds) Loan Capital 0

For the reasons set out in the Accounting Policies these investments have not been included as associated
undertakings. Based on the latest audited accounts received by the company in respect of each investment, if equity
accounting had been applied in these financial statements, the Group profit after tax would have been increased by
approximately £76,000 (1994: £142,000) and the Group net assets decreased by £140,000 (1994: increase of £227,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

' SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

At 315t December 1995, the principal submdwry ‘underiokings included in the consolidation we
Nature of business

_.ffﬁArrangemen f investment syndications "84 1y

___Investmentdeaimgcompany Ty
CandoverNommeeslelted* A.m,.,“,N°mmee°°mpa“3’ et U OTOINELY
Candover Partners Eimited % * General Partner of the Candover 1939 Fund,

. the Candover 1991 Fund and the Candover 1994 Fund ~ £1
Candover Investments (Nassqg_)_ Inc * - lnvestment holdmg company
Deutsche Candover GmbH * Arrangement of management buy-outand

050,600 Ordinary

“ Wholly owoned directly by the holding company
** Wholly owned by a subsidiary underiaking T+ 8I% owned by a subsidiary undertaking and 19% cuwmed directiy by the kolding company

During the year the Company acquired the minerity interest in Deutsche Candover GmbH. All of the preceding companies are
incorporated in Great Britain and are registered and operational in England and Wales with the exception of Deutsche Candover GmbH
which is incorporated ard is operational in the Federal Republic of Germany ard Candover Investments {(Nassau) [ne which is
incorporated and is gperational in the Bahamas.

Interests in the Candover 1989, 1991 and 1894 Funds (“Managed Funds®)

Candover Partners Limited is the General Partner of the limited partnerships comprising the Candover 1989 Fund, the Candover 1991
Fund and the Candover 1994 Fund. In view of the excessive length the name and address of each partnership will be enclosed with the
Company’s next annual return as permitted under section 231{5) Companies Act 1985. In addition advantage has been taken of the
exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the Partnerships and Unlimited Companies (Accounts) Regulations 1893 and accordingly
accounts in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 have not been prepared for each of the timited partrerships.

The Company is a Speciat Limited Partner in the Candover 1989 and Candover 1991 Funds and is a unitholder in an unauthorised unit
trust which is a Special Limited Partner in the Candover 1994 Fund. En each case the Special Limited Partner is entitled to participate
tn profits after a minimum rate of return has beer achieved by the Limited Partners. This profit entitlement, is referred to as the carried
interest.

Candover also holds a direct intetest in one of the Candover 1989 Limited Partnerships which at 31st December, 1995 was valued at
£1.0 million (cost $0.8 million) and in ai? the Candover 1994 Limited Partnerships which at 31st December, 1995 was valued at
£0.1 mitiion {cost §0.1 méltion).

For the reasons set out in the Acceunting Policies, the limited partnerships comprising the Cardever 1989, the Candover 1991 and the
Candover 1994 Funds have not been accounted for under the method of full consolidation. At 31st December, 1995, the net assets of the
Funds were £149.8 million (1994: £203.7 million) and the net income for the year ended was £11.9 million {1994 £10.3 miltion). The net

assets and net income can be summarised as follows:
1945

vestments e
Debtors

S ¢ )

Blockedaccount

Income from fixed asset investments T T A

Amounts held in the blocked account as at 31st December, 1994 represented Candover’s carried interest entitlerrent on
realisations made by the Candover 1989 Fund and were released to the company following the achievement of the
prescribed rate of return on the funds invested by the Limited Partners.

As at 31st December, 1995 Candover’s investraent as a Special Limited Pariner in the Gandover 1989 Fund was valued
at £0.9 million (1994: £14.7 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS 12

Nature of business Issued share capital/  Percentage held
Cos capital account
Hoare Candover Limited Management of the Hoare £1,000 50%
Candover Exempt Fund Ordlnary
LGV Candover Identifying investment
’ opportunities in Germany DM250,000 49%

Hoare Candover Limited is incorporated and operational in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales;
Candover’s interest in Hoare Candover Limited and LGV Candover are owned by the hoiding company and by a
suBsidiary undertaking respectively.

LGV Candover is incorpor;ted and is operational in the Federal Republic of Germany

................................................................................... 5000 .50

Costat lst Jauary, 1995 o 1

Share of post-acquisitior reserves at 1st Jan};gm lgs 36 -

Inerease ) _

92 1

.............................................................................................................................. — - —
' - I DEBTORS 13

Group Company

1995 1694 1995 1934

£000 £000 000 £000

year:

'I‘ra e ebtors
Amounts owed by substdlary undertakmgs

Amou nts owed by associated undertakmgs

Prepayments and accrued income

Amounts falling due after more than one year:

Prepayments and accrued income o _ L616 1524 -
Total debtors 5,180 6,682 1,352 2,520
.................................................. e e <+ P ...
CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS 14
Group Company
1995 1994 1995 1994
£000 £000 ) £0006 £000

Short term deposits and fixed interest securities 51,455 26,192 43,871 19,066
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Lo Group Company
) 1995 1994 1995 1994
5000 £000 £000 £000

'[‘rade credrtors i 289

Amounts owed to group undertakmgs -

Current taxatlon

Social cunty anri other taxatlon. .

proposeddmdends 1,9511,3131,9511313
e 1,2811,564190[73
Accrualsanddeférred — 1,4341,5539993

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES o

Group Company
1995 1994 1995 1994
F000 £000 ‘ F000

Deferred taxation:

Atl January , 1’099 : 1'013-- . 69 -
lnerease/(decrease) in year 881 " @ i

At 313t December ) 1,980 1,099 &7 69

Deferred taxation provrded fer in the ﬁnancra! statements
is set out below:

Accelerated capital allowances (70} (76) -

Other timing differences 2,050 1,175 67 69

There was no unprovided deferred taxation in the financial statements at 31st December, 1995 (1994 £Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL :

1995 L1994
Nuraber £000 Number &’00{)

Aumonseﬂ S UTUUOTRTRRURN
Ordmary shares of 25p each : 20,000,000 7,250 29,000,000 7,250

Allotted, cailecl up and fully pa:d ‘
Ordinary shares of 25p each at Lst January and at 31st December 22,381,005 5506 22,381,095 5,595
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NOTES TO THE FINANC1AL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Note 17 continuned
No options were granted or exercised during the year. At 31st December, 1995 the foltowing options rematned
exercisable at the following prices and dates.

No. of aptions Exercise Price Exercisable between

As at 31st December, 1995 there remained 149,570 aptions available to be granted under the New Candover (1994)
Executive share option scheme (1994: §49,570 options available). On 5th January, 1996 10,000 options exercisable at
340p lapsed.

The performatice criteria for the exercise of any options issued under the terms of Candover (1994) executive share
option scheme are referred to in the Rerauneration Cormittee report on page 33.

RESERVES

Non-distributable reserves Distributable
- reserves

Share Realised net  Unrealised net Profit
premium appreciation appreciation " and loss
account reserve reserve account
e FO00 FO0O  EO0OD 5000
At st Jamuary, 1995 e le L BbsT 2386 3900
Surplusonmvestmentsrevaluatmnm“m:::m"m'” I ¥ 71
Investmontsroaied imgear
Exchangedlfferences ST
Retamed proﬁt
At 315t Decemb
Company
At Ist January, 1995 e 126 B0286 236121043
Surplusonlmrestment,srevaluatlon..”"mmvmw:wm_mm __9,541
Investments reafised inyear T T G M0s (28 -
Retamedproﬁt‘.fortheyear R

1?..6.'£i3_15l 20,839 4658

.. il B8] il

Ai 8lst December, 1995 " T

1995 1994
LEO e SO0

(29 (2740
56 668
T

lopl9 148
B e

Shareholdersfundsat3lstDecember.1.%% ........................... I

18

19
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

20 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

22

L L1l 1sun

The directors have authorised commitments of £70 million and 55 million which will be invested pro rata and in
paratlel with the Candover 1994 Fund and the Candover 1991 Fund respectively. At 31st December, 1995 the
outstanding commitment was $62.5 million (1994: £68.9 million) ard $1.8 million (1994: £2.7 million) respectively.

At 31st December, 19965 the outsfanding commitment to the Lombard/Nogales Radio Partners LP was $0.9 million
(80.6 million) ((1994: $1.4 million (£0.9 million)). At 31st December, 1995 the outstanding commitment to the
Cambria Fund was ITL 591 million (£0.2 million) (1994: ITL 2,370 million (£5.9 millior)).

During the year the Company committed FF20 million f&2.6 million) to the Ciclad 2 Fund. At 31st December, 1995 the
outstanding commitment was FF19 million (§2.5 million).

PENSION COMMITMENTS .

The Group contril;uted towards a number of funded defined contribution pension schemes designed to provide
retirement benefits for its directors and empioyees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from the group in
independently administered funds. The pension cost charge represents contributions by the group to the schemes in
respect of the accounting period and amounted to $569,000 (1994: £242,000). Of this amount £240,000 remains payable
to the schemes at 3Ist December, 1995 (1994: SNil).

LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating lease payments amounting to $552,000 {1994: §564,000) are due within one year, The leases to which these

amounts relate expire as follows: :
1995 1994

- Land and Land and
- — . Buildings  Other  Buildings Other
e W0 EO00 8000 5000
Comminents oxpringnessthanonegesr .M
R > i
Mo e et 534 o 534“.
B4 18 68 %

An agreement to lease was entered into during January 1991 whereby a proportion of the premises had been sublet for
a period of three years at a rental of 564,000 per annum.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1995 1994

Profit on dlsposal of tangible fixed assets - ' (12)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5,634 4,014

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR

1995 1984

£000 £000

S lstJanuary ................................................................................................ 26,416 ................................. 22618
Net - shmﬂow ............................................................................................................ 25,13 3 ................................... 3 , 798
Balance at 31st December 51,649 26,416
............................................................................................................................ A - e e

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current asset Cash at bank
investments and in hand Tota)

£000 £000
22,064 554 22 618

4,128 (330) 3,798

26,192 224 26,416
25,263 (130) 25 133

51,455 94 51,549
——

The Company, its subsidiary Candover Partners Lirtited and certain of the Partnerships which comprise the Candover
1989 Fund have received a claim from a US corporation in respect of negotiations on a transaction in Germany.

The Board has taken appropriate legal advice and consider that the claim is without merit and it is not expected to
result in any material liability falling on the Company, Gandover Partners Limited or the Partneiships concerned.

23

25

26
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

27 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

a

Since the year end, the following events have odcured:

* On 2nd February, 1996 an investment in Eversholt Leasing Limited was completed in which Candover and the

Candover 1994 Fund invested. Candover’s share of the investment was £5.1 million.

¢ On Ist March, 1996 Bibby and Baron Group Limited was sold to British Poiythene Irdustries ple (BPI).

From this sale Candover received cash and shares totalling $0.4 million (cost : £0.3 million).

* On 15th March, 1996 contracts were exchanged to sell Blue Arrow Holdings Limited to The Corporate Services
Grou-p ple. The sale is expected to complete in April 1996 from which Candover will receive cash and shares valuing

Candover’s investment significantly higher than as at 31st December, 1995.
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DISTRIBUTION OF FIXED ASSET
INVESTMENTS

as at §1st December, 1995

Sector UK Europe Americas 1995 1994

Electromcs & Elec rical Equipmen
Engmeermg General 14 - 14 2.8 10.9

Consumer Goods
Alcohohc Beverages 2.0 - - 2.0 2.8
Health Care - - - - .3

Household Goods 10.6 - - 10.6 0.0

Dlstrlbutors 0.4 - - 04 0.4
Le1sure & Hotels 8.5 - - 8.6 6.9

oo Semces&susmesses o
..................................................................................... < - — — =

Fma.nclals
lnsurance 2.7 - - 2.7 1.7

Totals % 77.8 7.0 15.2 100.0 100.0

Totals £000 42,062 3,853 8,265 54,170 57,666
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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Candover Investments ple will be held at
The Howard Hotel, Temple Place, London WC2 cn Monday 13th May, 1996 at 11.80am for the

following purposes:

.

To receive the Report of the Directors and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31st December, 1995.

To declare a final dividend of 8.75p per share on the ordinary shares in respect of the year ended
31st December, 1995. ’

To re-elect Mr C.R.E. Brooke who retires by rotation.
To re-elect Mr S.W. Curran who retires by rotation.
To re-elect Mr R.A.P. King who retires by rotation.

To re-appoint Messrs Grant Thornton, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Cornpany until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Special Resolutions:

“That the Directors be and are hereby given power pursuant to Section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 to
allot equity securities (within the meaning of Section 94 of the said Act} pursuant to the authority
conferred by resolution Number 4(a) passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
11th May, 1993 as if Section 83(1) of the said Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this
power shall be limited:

(i) to the allotment of equity securities for the purpose of or in connection with a rights issue or scrip
dividend offer pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company or any pre-emptive invitation in
favour of the holders of ordinary shares (notwithstanding that by reason of such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or desirable by virtue of overseas regulations or to
deal with problems arising in any overseas territory or in connection with fractional entitlements or
record dates or otherwise howsoever, the equity securities to be allotted are not offered to all of such
holders in proportion to the number of ordinary shares held by each of them); and

(ii) to the allotment of equity securities (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (i) above) up to an
aggregate nominal amount equal to $279,764;

and shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held after
the conclusion of the meeting at which this resolution is passed or at the close of business on

13th August, 1997 (whichever is the earlier) save that the company may before such expiry make an
offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and
the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the power
conferred hereby had not expired.”

BR. Neal
Company Secretary
Oth April, 1996

1 Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting
may appoint one or more proxies to attead and vote on his behalf.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Forms of proxy must
be lodged not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

2 The following documents will be available for inspection at the
registered effice during business hours on any weekday {excluding

Saturdays and public holidays) from the date of this Hotice until the
date of the Annual General Meeting and at the venue of the Meeting
from [1.15am on 13th May, 1996 until the conclusion of the Meeting;
(&) copies of the service contracts of the Dicgctors; (ii) the
Company's Articles of Association; (iii} The register of Directors'
interests in the share capitai of the Corapany.



Notes
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FORM OF PROXY

For use at the Annual General Meeting of Candover Investments ple
to be held on 13th May, 1996

If you wish to vote at the Annual General Meeting but are unable to attend in person you may
appoint a proxy to act on your behalf by compieting this form:

being (a) member(s) of Candover Investments ple, hereby appoint the Chairman of the
Meeting or (see note 2} _ as my / our proxy to vote for me / us on
my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting to be held at 11.30am on 18th May, 1996 and
at any adjournment thereof.

I/ We direct my / our proxy to vote on the resolutions sef out in the notice convening the
meeting as indicated with an ‘X’ in the appropriate space below.

-

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST
Resolution 1 | To receive the report of the Directors and the audited financial
staternents for the year ended 31st December, 1985.
Resolution 2 | To declare a final dividend of 8.75p per ordinary share for the
year ended 31st December, 1995.
Resolution 3 | To re-elect Mr C.R.E. Brooke
Resolution 4 | To re-etect Mr S.W. Curran
Resolution 5 | To re-elect Mr R.A.P. King *
Resolution 6 | To re-appoint the auditors and to authorise the directors
to fix their remuneration
* Member of the Remuneration Committee
SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST
Resolution 7 { To grant to directors the power pursuant to Section 95 Companies
Act 1985 to disapply the provision of Section $9(1) Companies
Act 1985 with regard to the allotment of certain equity securities.

see notes 3 & &

1 If no indication is given, the proxy holder will vote or abstain from
voting at his or her discretion.

2 A member may appoint a proxy cther than the chairman of the
meeting by inserting the name and address of such proxy (who need
not be a member) in the space provided above. The appointment of a
proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in
person should he/she subsequently decide to do so.

8 Inthe case of a joint holder, the signature of any cne holder will
be sufficient.

4 Inthe case of a corporation, the proxy sheuld be executed under
its common seal, or signed as a deed, or under the kand of some
officer, duly authorised in writing in that behalf.

6 This form, te be valid must be lodged at the office of the-
registrars of the company not later than 48 hours before the time of
the Meeting.
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